
                
CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

Council Chambers 
                                                                                                          401 E Third Street 

Kewanee, Illinois 61443 
Closed Meeting starting at 6:00 p.m. Via Zoom 

Open Meeting starting at 7:00 p.m. Via Zoom 
Monday November 30th, 2020 

 

Posted by 6:00 p.m. November 25th, 2020 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Closed meeting pursuant to Section 2 (c) (1) of the Open Meetings Act to discuss personnel.  

4. Return to Open Session 

5. Call to Order 

6. Roll Call 

7. Pledge of Allegiance 

8. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes  
b. Payroll 
c. Staff Reports 

9. Presentation of Bills and Claims 

10. Public Participation 

 

a) Discussion Only Outdoor Boilers  
b) Discussion Only of Acceptable bids  
c) Consideration of a Resolution #5254 to approve a Resolution for Improvement Under the 

Illinois Highway Code for MFT Section 21-00110-0-PV in the amount of $851,251 
d) Consideration of a Resolution #5255 declaring the line shaft pump and all associated 

items from well #4 as surplus. 
e) Consideration of a Resolution #5256 accepting the lowest responsive and 

responsible bid from G&L Tank Sandblasting and Coating LLC, for Project #21-01, 
North Water Tower Coating, in the amount of $585,100.00. 

f) Consideration of a Resolution #5257 Amending an agreement with Dixon engineering to 
provide construction inspection services at the north water tower coating project. 

g) Consideration of a Resolution #5258 Awarding demolition contract for the demolition 
of the buildings located at 245 Tenney St. 

h) Consideration of an Ordinance #4034 granting a rezoning request, for land located at 
117 E. Central Blvd., Kewanee 

i) Consideration of an ordinance #4035 allowing Indoor Shooting Range as a Special 
Use within B-3 Zoning. 

j) Consideration of a Resolution #5259 authorizing the City Manager to execute 
documents for the renewal of a self-funded insurance plan with Blue Cross Blue Shield 
of Illinois and other carriers for the plan year 2021. 

 



 
 
 

k) Consideration of a Resolution #5260 authorizing an agreement for Managed IT 
Services and Lease/Purchase agreements for IT Hardware Solutions to Access 
Systems 

 

11. Council Communications: 

12. Announcements:  

13. Adjournment: 



 

 
 

 MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: November 25, 2020 
From: Gary Bradley, City Manager 
To: Mayor & Council 
RE:       Council Meeting of Monday, November 30, 2020 
 
CLOSED MEETING AT 6:00 P.M. 
REGULAR MEETING AT 7:00 P.M. 

 
1. Civil Service Commission— The Civil Service Commission has completed its process 

and will finalize two hiring lists as soon as it is possible for them to meet in person or via 
zoom. 

   
2. Tower Equipment— At the last City Council meeting, a question was asked regarding the 

display of equipment for sale or rental.  Such a practice is permitted within the B-2 zoning 
on the property owned by Tower Equipment.   

 
3. Memorials— At the last City Council meeting, a question was asked regarding when it 

became our practice to purchase plants or memorials for people affiliated with the City 
who passed away.  Such a practice has been in place for at least the past twenty years and 
is codified through the adoption of the Administrative Code of the City and included in 
budget notes dating back at least 9 years.   

 
4. Political Signs— We were asked about the regulation of political signs and when they have 

to be removed by.  Public Act 096-0904 prevents the City from regulating the placement 
or removal of such signs.   

 
5. RFPs—Our review of responses to the insurance RFP was delayed due to Covid but will 

be complete by the middle of next week.  We received 7 responses to our RFP for 
Information Technology services, which is on the agenda for your consideration.   

 
6. Engineering Services— City Engineer Scott Hinton has announced his upcoming 

retirement.  Scott has done a tremendous job during his brief time here.  We’re fortunate to 
have stolen him away from Moline for as long as we had him and hope that anyone else 
we can lure away from their organization can make the same type of contributions.   As 
previously noted, this does raise the question of whether we can get enough value out of a 
full time engineer to warrant retaining the position versus the idea of contracting it out.  
Ultimately, the answer depends entirely upon who would be hired and who would perform 
the work on a contract basis.  

 
7. Happy Thanksgiving—Happy Thanksgiving to our Elected Officials and our appointed 

staff.  Everyone’s efforts to improve the community and our organization are greatly 
appreciated.     



 SYS DATE:11/25/20                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:10:09
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 283
 DATE: 11/16/20                  Monday November 16,2020                       PAGE   1

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================

 01 ADVANCED BUSINESS SYSTEMS INC                              183.70
    INV1958805        01-11-512        MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT                     183.70

 01 ADVANCED PLUMBING & MECHANICAL                            1040.00
    17647             52-43-515        CLOGGED SEWER MAIN                       1040.00

 01 AMEREN ILLINOIS                                          16671.29
    D11092020         01-11-571        STREET LIGHTS                            6399.68
    D11092020         01-52-571        PARKS                                      32.06
    D11092020         51-93-571        WTP                                      8318.36
    D11092020         52-93-571        WWTP                                      610.38
    D11092020         54-54-571        FR. PARK                                  106.58
    D11092020         58-36-571        CEMETERY                                  135.82
    D11092020         62-45-571        MUNICIPAL BLDGS                          1068.41

 01 ARCH, GREGG                                                 58.43
    D11162020         58-36-652        DAMAGE TO PROPERTY                         58.43

 01 BOCK INC                                                 57126.15
    80                51-93-515        CONTRACT PAYMENT                        15273.09
    80                52-93-515        CONTRACT PAYMENT                        41853.06

 01 BREEDLOVE'S SPORTING GOODS                                 225.50
    40578             01-21-471        MOCK PATCH                                 28.00
    40600             52-43-652        MASKS                                     197.50

 01 COLWELL, BRENT                                             200.00
    181023            02-61-549        ELECTRICAL INSPECTION                      25.00
    181024            02-61-549        ELECTRICAL INSPECTION                      50.00
    181025            02-61-549        ELECTRICAL INSPECTION                      25.00
    181026            02-61-549        ELECTRICAL INSPECTION                      25.00
    181027            01-65-549        ELECTRICAL INSPECTION                      25.00
    181028            02-61-549        ELECTRICAL INSPECTION                      50.00

 01 COMCAST CABLE                                              113.35
    D11142020         38-71-549        INTERNET-DEPOT                            113.35

 01 CYLINDERS PLUS LLC                                         117.59
    8981              62-45-612        A13 CYLINDER REPAIR                       117.59

 01 DOOLEY BROS PLUMBING                                      1217.02
    1269              52-43-515        TREE ROOTS MILL ST                        170.00
    1270              51-42-615        FILTERS FOR CLAY VAC                     1047.02

 01 DWYER, ANDREW                                              548.50
    D10272020         01-41-617        706 PINE ST                               548.50

 01 EASTERN IOWA TIRE, INC                                     256.00
    100096137         01-52-612        CEMETERY/PARKS                            256.00

 01 ED'S HEATING, A/C, PLBG & ELEC                             421.95
    21691             52-43-511        PW FURNACE REPAIR                         149.05
    31768             51-42-611        SINK FAUCET                               272.90

 01 FRIENDS OF THE ANIMALS                                    1333.33
    6278059           01-21-539        SEMI MONTHLY PAYMENT                     1333.33

 01 GUSTAFSON FORD                                            1203.61
    172743            62-45-513        CAR 7                                     971.59
    8036              62-45-613        CAR2                                      232.02



 SYS DATE:11/25/20                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:10:09
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 283
 DATE: 11/16/20                  Monday November 16,2020                       PAGE   2

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================

 01 HACH COMPANY                                               939.67
    12189850          52-93-652        WWTP TESTING SUPPLIES                     939.67

 01 HARTCO                                                    3710.00
    KEW201101         58-36-820        WATER LINE TO BLDG                       3710.00

 01 HAWKINS INC                                               4273.49
    4825309           51-93-619        VACUUM REGULATOR                          190.00
    4833521           51-93-656        WATER TREATMENT CHEMICALS                4083.49

 01 HAYES, RAY JR                                              210.00
    5926              52-43-515        PUSH SPOILS                               105.00
    5926              51-42-515        PUSH SPOILS                               105.00

 01 HAYES, RAY                                                1253.50
    D11192020         01-41-617        332 & 324 E DIVISION                     1253.50

 01 HODGE'S 66 INC                                            4472.08
    56710             62-45-513        A14                                        68.04
    56742             62-45-513        ST 29                                      45.90
    56752             62-45-513        ST 801                                   4272.55
    56760             62-45-513        A13                                        68.04
    56771             62-45-613        1K-28                                      17.55

 01 HOME DEPOT                                                 321.89
    580352417         38-71-611        CLEANING SUPPLIES                         230.00
    580615821         38-71-611        PAPER TOWELS                               91.89

 01 HOTSY EQUIPMENT CO                                         202.60
    13783             62-45-612        FLEET PRESSURE WASHER                     202.60

 01 ICE MILLER LLP                                            5046.40
    01-2065933        47-84-730        BOND COUNSEL FEE                         5046.40

 01 ILLINOIS STATE POLICE                                       28.25
    D08012020         01-22-455        FINGERPRINT                                28.25

 01 IMPACT NETWORKING                                          183.14
    1951011           01-11-512        KONICA CONTRACT                           183.14

 01 INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEMS OF                              586.84
    10133662          62-45-613        PWD 77                                    169.95
    10133662          52-43-830        PUBLIC WORKS                              169.99
    10133662          62-45-612        HONDA GENERATOR                            45.95
    10133736          62-45-612        ARROW BOARD                               200.95

 01 KEWANEE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT C                           15000.00
    FY20-2021         02-61-913        1/2 ANNUAL CONTRIBUTION                 15000.00

 01 KEWANEE POOL & SPA                                          29.44
    23951             51-93-656        LIQUID CHLORINE                            29.44

 01 MARTIN BROS COMPANIES INC                                 8234.76
    708               52-43-615        B ROCK/CA 6                              8234.76

 01 MCKESSON MEDICAL SURGICAL                                  334.47
    15354659          01-22-612        MEDICAL SUPPLIES                          277.05
    15370217          01-22-612        MEDICAL SUPPLIES                           46.94
    15467088          01-22-612        MEDICAL SUPPLIES                           10.48

 01 MED-TECH RESOURCE LLC                                     5591.05
    123641            01-22-612        MEDICAL SUPPLIES                         2068.57



 SYS DATE:11/25/20                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:10:09
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 283
 DATE: 11/16/20                  Monday November 16,2020                       PAGE   3

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================
    123707            01-22-612        MEDICAL SUPPLIES                          273.13
    123944            01-22-612        MEDICAL SUPPLIES                         1994.51
    124090            01-22-612        MEDICAL SUPPLIES                         1254.84

 01 METTLER-TOLEDO INC                                         309.26
    654891430         52-93-512        INPECTION OF LAB                          309.26

 01 MICA                                                      5000.00
    3240957-051088    14-11-591        LIAB INS CLAIM                           5000.00

 01 MIROCHA'S AUTO SERVICE INC                                  40.00
    17859             62-45-513        W69                                        40.00

 01 MITSUBISHI ELECTRIC POWER PROD                            2730.00
    UPSD-M004841      38-71-511        BATTERY REPLACEMENT                      2730.00

 01 MOORE TIRES KEWANEE                                       8307.47
    K43725            39-73-840        BOCK MANURER SPREADER                    7664.84
    K44832            62-45-613        W44                                        41.78
    K45076            62-45-513        TIRE DISPOSAL                              20.65
    K45363            62-45-513        ST 21                                      41.78
    K45533            62-45-613        POLICE TRUCK 4                            514.64
    K45587            62-45-513        CAR 2                                      23.78

 01 OFFICE SPECIALISTS INC                                     819.13
    1093743-0         01-11-651        CITY HALL SUPPLIES                        313.60
    1093743-0         01-41-651        RED DIARY                                  29.30
    1093743-0         01-41-651        BINDED BOOKS                               87.90
    1093743-0         01-65-652        LABELS                                     15.57
    1094103-0         38-71-611        CITY HALL SUPPLIES                         56.48
    1094103-1         38-71-611        CITY HALL SUPPLIES                        101.36
    1094626-0         38-71-611        CITY HALL SUPPLIES                        214.92

 01 OFFICE MACHINE CONSULTANTS INC                             229.32
    124032            01-22-612        MEDICAL SUPPLIES                          110.13
    IN212509          01-22-537        COPIER MAINTENANCE                         62.95
    IN2125140         01-22-537        COPIER MAINTENANCE                          5.23
    IN213442          01-21-512        COPIER MAINTENANCE                         51.01

 01 PDC LABORATORIES INC                                       138.00
    I9442339          51-93-542        FLOURIDE BY PROBE                          18.00
    I9442721          51-93-542        COLIFORM/ECOLI                             20.00
    I9442871          51-93-542        COLIFORM/ECOLI                            100.00

 01 PEERLESS WELL & PUMP                                    117123.40
    849               32-42-850        RENOVATE WELL #4                       117123.40

 01 PEST DOCTOR                                                165.00
    28529             38-71-549        CITY HALL                                  60.00
    28530             01-21-539        POUND PEST CONTROL                         25.00
    28531             52-93-580        PEST CONTROL                               35.00
    28532             01-22-580        PEST SERVICES                              20.00
    28533             51-93-580        PEST CONTROL                               25.00

 01 RAY O'HERRON COMPANY INC                                   385.00
    2063488-IN        62-45-613        POLICE SIREN                              385.00

 01 S&S INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY                                       95.52
    5149636RI         62-45-652        SHOP SUPPLIES                              95.52



 SYS DATE:11/25/20                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:10:09
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 283
 DATE: 11/16/20                  Monday November 16,2020                       PAGE   4

 PAYABLE TO                                                    AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================

 01 STAR-COURIER                                               496.50
    100444-07         01-11-553        CLERKS/TDL TESTS                          496.50

 01 STRYKER SALES CORPORATION                                 4363.00
    3193404 M         01-22-512        LIFEPACK WARRANTY                        4363.00

 01 SUPREME RADIO COMMUNICATIONS I                           11596.25
    44391             14-11-591        LIGHTENING STRIKE                        6800.00
    9660              01-21-556        RADIO MAINTENANCE                        4796.25

 01 SUPERIOR CONCRETE                                          212.50
    348256            01-41-617        ADA PAD                                   212.50

 01 TRIANGLE CONCRETE INC                                     4468.75
    9957              52-43-615        CONCRETE                                 2875.00
    9957              51-42-615        CONCRETE                                  906.25
    9957              01-41-614        CONCRETE                                  687.50

 01 USA BLUEBOOK                                               369.68
    408965            51-42-653        CABLE GRAB                                369.68

 01 VERIZON WIRELESS                                           808.29
    9866243677        01-22-552        FIRE CELL SERVICE                          77.92
    9866968568        01-21-552        POLICE CELL                               730.37

   **  TOTAL CHECKS TO BE ISSUED                            288791.07



 SYS DATE:11/25/20                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:10:09
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]
                                      REGISTER # 283
 DATE: 11/16/20                  Monday November 16,2020                       PAGE   5

     FUND                                                      AMOUNT
    INV NO            G/L NUMBER       DESCRIPTION                                DISTR
=======================================================================================

    GENERAL FUND                                             28281.41

    ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT                                     15175.00

    INSURANCE FUND                                           11800.00

    WATER IMPROVEMENT                                       117123.40

    CAPITAL MAINTENANCE/MUN. BLDG.                            3598.00

    ACQUISITION FUND                                          7664.84

    2015 GO WATER/SEWER BOND                                  5046.40

    WATER FUND                                               30758.23

    SEWER FUND                                               56688.67

    FRANCIS PARK                                               106.58

    CEMETERY FUND                                             3904.25

    CENTRAL MAINTENANCE                                       8644.29

      *** GRAND TOTAL ***                                   288791.07

          TOTAL FOR REGULAR CHECKS:                        287,457.74
          TOTAL FOR DIRECT PAY VENDORS:                      1,333.33



 SYS DATE:11/25/20                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:10:09
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]

 DATE: 11/16/20                  Monday November 16,2020                       PAGE   6

=======================================================================================
                                A/P MANUAL CHECK POSTING LIST
    POSTINGS FROM ALL CHECK REGISTRATION RUNS(NR) SINCE LAST CHECK VOUCHER RUN(NCR)
=======================================================================================
 PAYABLE TO                     CHECK DATE    CHECK NO         AMOUNT
   REG#  INV NO          G/L NUMBER      DESCRIPTION                              DISTR
=======================================================================================
 01 CAMBRIDGE TELCOM SERVICES INC 11/24/20    58710            280.00
    505  D11092020       01-21-552       POLICE INTERNET                         280.00

 01 COMCAST CABLE                 11/24/20    58707            108.35
    505  D12312020       51-93-552       NWTP VPN                                108.35

 01 COMCAST CABLE                 11/24/20    58708             88.40
    505  D11302020       51-93-552       SWTP VPN                                 88.40

 01 ILLINOIS HEALTHCARE & FAMILY S11/24/20    ACH 1124        4544.89
    505  ACH 11242020    01-22-579       EMERG TRANS SERVICES                   4544.89

 01 KELLEY, ELIZABETH             11/22/20    58703            106.78
    505  D11142020       01-11-471       CLOTHING ALLOWANCE                      106.78

 01 LOGSDON, SCOTT                11/24/20    58709             35.00
    505  D11062020       01-41-455       CDL REIMBURSEMENT                        35.00

 01 NEWTON, KEVIN                 11/23/20    58704             39.24
    505  D11142020       01-41-473       CLOTHING ALLOWANCE                       39.24

 01 PROFESSIONAL BILLING SERVICES 11/24/20    171             1376.86
    505  OCT-2020        01-22-579       OCT BILLING CHARGES                    1376.86

 01 SHADRICK, CHRIS               11/12/20    58635            200.25
    505  D11122020       01-41-473       CLOTHING ALLOWANCE                      200.25

 01 SWEARINGEN, STEPHEN           11/24/20    58706            141.27
    505  D11232020       01-41-473       CLOTHING ALLOWANCE                      141.27

 01 ULTIMATE DETAILING            11/23/20    58705            150.00
    505  465             62-45-512       DETAILING                               150.00

 01 WALMART COMMUNITY             11/24/20    58711            268.87
    505  D11162020       01-11-929       OFFICE SUPPLIES                          40.60
    505  D11162020       01-21-651       PRINTER CABLE                            53.56
    505  D11162020       01-22-652       CAR CARE/DAWN                            37.52
    505  D11162020       51-42-651       PRINTER INK                             137.19

 15 GALESBURG BUILDERS SUPPLY     11/24/20    1072            3332.50
    505  31913           15-41-514       COLD PATCH MIX                         3332.50

 15 HUTCHISON ENGINEERING, INC.   11/24/20    1070            5054.42



 SYS DATE:11/25/20                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:10:09
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]

 DATE: 11/16/20                  Monday November 16,2020                       PAGE   7

=======================================================================================
                                A/P MANUAL CHECK POSTING LIST
    POSTINGS FROM ALL CHECK REGISTRATION RUNS(NR) SINCE LAST CHECK VOUCHER RUN(NCR)
=======================================================================================
 PAYABLE TO                     CHECK DATE    CHECK NO         AMOUNT
   REG#  INV NO          G/L NUMBER      DESCRIPTION                              DISTR
=======================================================================================
    505  2 FINAL         15-41-514       ITEP PROF SERVICES                     5054.42

 15 IMEG CORPORATION              11/24/20    1071            2168.50
    505  20003415.00-3   15-41-514       SOUTH STREET SECTION                   2168.50

 15 PORTER BROTHERS ASPHALT & SEAL11/22/20    1069          106041.30
    505  PAY#2 FINAL     15-41-514       STREET PROGRAM                       106041.30

 74 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF IL  11/22/20    1465.1        138965.37
    505  bcbs11222020    74-14-451       HEALTH INS CLAIMS                    145673.08
    505  bcbs11222020    74-14-452       STOP LOSS                              6707.71-

 74 MUTUAL OF OMAHA               11/24/20    1466.1           319.20
    505  001143437591    74-14-451       LIFE/AD&D INS                           319.20

 74 SISCO                         11/24/20    1467.1          3128.42
    505  D11242020       74-14-451       DENTAL VISION CLAIMS                   3128.42

 74 SISCO                         11/16/20    ACH1118          791.00
    505  D11132020       74-14-451       DENTAL AND EYE CLAIMS                   791.00

   **  TOTAL MANUAL CHECKS REGISTERED                       267140.62

=======================================================================================
   REPORT SUMMARY
=======================================================================================
   CASH             CHECKS TO           REGISTERED
   FUND             BE ISSUED             MANUAL               TOTAL
=======================================================================================
    01             288791.07              7339.91           296130.98
    15                   .00            116596.72           116596.72
    74                   .00            143203.99           143203.99
                  ------------         ------------        ------------
  TOTAL CASH       288791.07            267140.62           555931.69

=======================================================================================
   DISTR            CHECKS TO           REGISTERED
   FUND             BE ISSUED             MANUAL               TOTAL
=======================================================================================
    01              28281.41              6855.97            35137.38
    02              15175.00                  .00            15175.00
    14              11800.00                  .00            11800.00
    15                   .00            116596.72           116596.72
    32             117123.40                  .00           117123.40
    38               3598.00                  .00             3598.00



 SYS DATE:11/25/20                     CITY OF KEWANEE                   SYS TIME:10:09
                               A / P   W A R R A N T   L I S T                    [NW1]

 DATE: 11/16/20                  Monday November 16,2020                       PAGE   8

=======================================================================================
                                A/P MANUAL CHECK POSTING LIST
    POSTINGS FROM ALL CHECK REGISTRATION RUNS(NR) SINCE LAST CHECK VOUCHER RUN(NCR)
=======================================================================================
 PAYABLE TO                     CHECK DATE    CHECK NO         AMOUNT
   REG#  INV NO          G/L NUMBER      DESCRIPTION                              DISTR
=======================================================================================
=======================================================================================
   DISTR            CHECKS TO           REGISTERED
   FUND             BE ISSUED             MANUAL               TOTAL
=======================================================================================
    39               7664.84                  .00             7664.84
    47               5046.40                  .00             5046.40
    51              30758.23               333.94            31092.17
    52              56688.67                  .00            56688.67
    54                106.58                  .00              106.58
    58               3904.25                  .00             3904.25
    62               8644.29               150.00             8794.29
    74                   .00            143203.99           143203.99
                  ------------         ------------        ------------
  TOTAL DISTR      288791.07            267140.62           555931.69

























 Community Development EOM Violation Listing

From Date: 10/01/2020
To Date: 10/31/2020

File# Owner Name Street# Pre-
Direction 

Street Name Street
Type 

Phone# Open Date Violation Short
Description 

Violation Comments How
Received 

20-

000865 

ERDMAN, JAMES E 1114  ROSEVIEW AVE  10/01/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Inoperable truck Staff
Initiated 

20-

000866 

BLODGETT, JERRY L 1016  ROSEVIEW   10/01/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Inoperable vehicles Staff
Initiated 

20-

000867 

FEUCHT, EARL W &
MARGARET L 

803  COLUMBUS AVE  10/01/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Inoperable truck Staff
Initiated 

20-

000868 

MURCHISON, E ANNE
ETAL 

710 WEST PROSPECT   10/01/2020 Exterior
Structure
Property Areas,
Weeds 

Tall weeds and brush in the back
yard 

Staff
Initiated 

20-

000870 

MORCK, JENNIFER,
BENJAMIN, KELLY 

224 EAST MCCLURE   10/01/2020 Littering Debris on deck. Downed tree
needs removed 

Staff
Initiated 

20-

000871 

MEEKER, KENNETH L JR
& AUTUMN 

626 WEST 4TH ST  10/05/2020 Littering Boxes and debris on front porch  

20-

000872 

CLAGUE, DUANE SR &
CATHERINE 

1001  ROSE ST  10/05/2020 Littering Old truck bed full of debris Staff
Initiated 

20-

000873 

HOFFMANN, ANDREW A 201 NORTH WASHINGTON ST  10/05/2020 Littering Trailer with debris Staff
Initiated 

20- HOFFMANN, ANDREW A 201 NORTH WASHINGTON ST  10/05/2020 Construction, Metal materials sharp edges Staff



000873 Appearance,
Maintenance -
Materials 

Initiated 

20-

000874 

STRAND, ANTHONY C &
FRANCES M 

123 NORTH ADAMS   10/05/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Inoperable vehicles Staff
Initiated 

20-

000874 

STRAND, ANTHONY C &
FRANCES M 

123 NORTH ADAMS   10/05/2020 Unsafe,
Unsightly
Structures 

 Staff
Initiated 

20-

000874 

STRAND, ANTHONY C &
FRANCES M 

123 NORTH ADAMS   10/05/2020 Exterior
Structure
Property Areas,
Weeds 

Tall weeds entire property Staff
Initiated 

20-

000875 

HUGHES, MICHAEL J 306 NORTH EAST   10/05/2020 Littering Trash and building debris and
brush pile in back yard 

Staff
Initiated 

20-

000876 

EDGE, DAVID E JR &
CHRISOULA F 

617 SOUTH TREMONT   10/05/2020 Exterior
Structure
Property Areas,
Accessory
structures 

Garage is leaning and showing
signs of structural failure. 

Phone 

20-

000876 

EDGE, DAVID E JR &
CHRISOULA F 

617 SOUTH TREMONT   10/05/2020 Exterior
Structure,
Unsafe
Conditions 

Garage is leaning and showing
signs of structural failure. 

Phone 

20-

000877 

FRANTZEN, MICHAEL L
EST 

510 EAST 7TH ST  10/06/2020 Unsafe,
Unsightly
Structures 

Unsafe garage Staff
Initiated 

20-

000877 

FRANTZEN, MICHAEL L
EST 

510 EAST 7TH ST  10/06/2020 Exterior
Structure
Property Areas,
Weeds 

Tall weeds around property Staff
Initiated 

20-

000879 

CORRAL, MACARIO
DUARTE & MARGARITA
DUARTE 

200 WEST MCCLURE   10/07/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and

Inoperable motorhome Staff
Initiated 



other personal
property 

20-

000880 

PETTY, ERIC A & BECKY
S 

1006  ROCKWELL   10/08/2020 Littering Downed tree branches in alley Staff
Initiated 

20-

000881 

BOLLINGER RENTALS,
LLC, 

820 EAST 7TH ST  10/08/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Inoperable van Staff
Initiated 

20-

000882 

CONNER, GREGORY A 321 NORTH BOSS ST  10/13/2020 Littering Junk and debris  Staff
Initiated 

20-

000882 

CONNER, GREGORY A 321 NORTH BOSS ST  10/13/2020 Exterior
Structure
Property Areas,
Weeds 

 Staff
Initiated 

20-

000883 

KIDA, JAMES E &
DOREEN A 

310 NORTH RICE   10/13/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Inoperable unlicensed vehicle Staff
Initiated 

20-

000884 

PRICE, BRIAN T JR 312 NORTH EAST ST  10/14/2020 Littering Brush. Debris and old battery Staff
Initiated 

20-

000885 

HAYES, RAY E JR &
PENNY M 

426 EAST 9TH ST  10/14/2020 Littering Mattress  

20-

000886 

VANSTECHELMAN, JEFF
& CATHLEEN D 

410  MCKINLEY AVE  10/15/2020 Unsafe,
Unsightly
Structures 

Peeling paint and front steps Staff
Initiated 

20-

000887 

GUTSCHLAG, CAROL J 304  MCKINLEY   10/15/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Unlicensed inoperable vehicle Staff
Initiated 

20-

000888 

SALL, LAURA J 710  PINE ST  10/15/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and

Inoperable Staff
Initiated 



other personal
property 

20-

000889 

LEMPKE, LYNDELL 213 NORTH ELM ST  10/15/2020 Exterior
Structure
Property Areas,
Weeds 

Tall weeds on northside of building In Person 

20-

000890 

WILAMOSKI, PATRICIA ET
AL 

413 EAST 8TH ST  10/15/2020 Exterior
Structure
Property Areas,
Weeds 

Tall weeds and brush all over In Person 

20-

000890 

WILAMOSKI, PATRICIA ET
AL 

413 EAST 8TH ST  10/15/2020 Exterior
Structure,
Protective
Treatment 

Missing paint In Person 

20-

000890 

WILAMOSKI, PATRICIA ET
AL 

413 EAST 8TH ST  10/15/2020 Exterior
Structure,
Roofs and
drainage 

Roof in need of repairs In Person 

20-

000892 

HERNANDEZ, JORGE &
WENDY 

636 NORTH WALNUT   10/15/2020 Violation
Penalties 

Construction without building
permit 

Staff
Initiated 

20-

000892 

HERNANDEZ, JORGE &
WENDY 

636 NORTH WALNUT   10/15/2020 Unlawful
Continuance 

Construction without building
permit 

Staff
Initiated 

20-

000893 

THOLIN, TWYLA K 506 EAST 7TH ST  10/15/2020 Swimming Pool
- Barriers 

Abandoned pool with no fence In Person 

20-

000894 

ROBBINS, BRYCE D &
SMITH, ANGELIC R 

110 NORTH ELM   10/16/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Inoperable vehicle Staff
Initiated 

20-

000895 

PETTIT, BETH A 726 WEST PROSPECT   10/16/2020 Exterior
Structure
Property Areas,
Weeds 

Tall weeds in driveway Staff
Initiated 

20-

000896 

STONTZ, BRADLEY 1028 WEST PROSPECT   10/16/2020 Storage and
parking of

Inoperable vehicle Staff
Initiated 



vehicles and
other personal
property 

20-

000898 

SUTTON & ASSOCIATES
REALTY INC, 

913 NORTH MAIN   10/19/2020 Littering Debris on porch Staff
Initiated 

20-

000899 

LONGEVILLE, BRETT A 812  Chest   10/19/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Inoperable vehicle Staff
Initiated 

20-

000900 

BJ'S RENTALS LLC, 214 WEST 8TH ST  10/19/2020 Littering Brush and old fencing Staff
Initiated 

20-

000900 

BJ'S RENTALS LLC, 214 WEST 8TH ST  10/19/2020 Construction,
Appearance,
Maintenance -
Maintenance 

Fence needs repaired Staff
Initiated 

20-

000901 

LONGEVILLE, BRETT A 812 NORTH CHESTNUT   10/19/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Inoperable unlicensed vehicle Staff
Initiated 

20-

000902 

WOODS, IVORY N 516 NORTH LEXINGTON   10/19/2020 Conditions Bad roof Staff
Initiated 

20-

000903 

FEUCHT, EARL W &
MARGARET L 

514 NORTH LEXINGTON AVE  10/19/2020 Unsafe,
Unsightly
Structures 

Front porch caving in. Garage also
caving in.  

Staff
Initiated 

20-

000904 

VANDRAN, JOHN D TR &
JULIE A TR 

106  MAPLE AVE  10/19/2020 Littering Debris and tall brush Staff
Initiated 

20-

000905 

AVILEZ, LUZ MARIA
MARADO 

101  GOODRICH   10/19/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Inoperable unlicensed truck Staff
Initiated 

20- RAMSEY, MELANIE &
GUSTAITIS, DONALD K

926 NORTH CHESTNUT   10/20/2020 Littering Appliance and trash bags in back
of house 

Staff
Initiated 



000906 JR 

20-

000906 

RAMSEY, MELANIE &
GUSTAITIS, DONALD K
JR 

926 NORTH CHESTNUT   10/20/2020 R-1 ONE-
FAMILY
DWELLING
DISTRICT 

RV illegally parked in grass alley
city owned right of way 

Staff
Initiated 

20-

000906 

RAMSEY, MELANIE &
GUSTAITIS, DONALD K
JR 

926 NORTH CHESTNUT   10/20/2020 R-2 ONE-
FAMILY
DWELLING
DISTRICT 

Complaint of possible people living
in RV 

Staff
Initiated 

20-

000907 

VANDRAN, JOHN D TR &
VANDRAN, JULIE A TR 

930 NORTH VINE   10/20/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Unlicensed vehicle Staff
Initiated 

20-

000908 

MELOEN, DAVID ETAL 333  PAYSON   10/21/2020 Unsafe,
Unsightly
Structures 

Rear of garage and shed Staff
Initiated 

20-

000908 

MELOEN, DAVID ETAL 333  PAYSON   10/21/2020 Exterior
Structure,
Protective
Treatment 

PEELING PAINT Staff
Initiated 

20-

000908 

MELOEN, DAVID ETAL 333  PAYSON   10/21/2020 Exterior
Structure,
Roofs and
drainage 

SHINGLES ON GARAGE BAD Staff
Initiated 

20-

000909 

INCE, MARGARET &
WHITE, RENEE 

313  MAPLE AVE  10/21/2020 Littering Debris tires etc along garage.  Staff
Initiated 

20-

000909 

INCE, MARGARET &
WHITE, RENEE 

313  MAPLE AVE  10/21/2020 R-1 ONE-
FAMILY
DWELLING
DISTRICT 

Camper in back appears occupied.
Illegal. 

Staff
Initiated 

20-

000910 

MERRITT, WILLIAM P JR 421 NORTH LAKEVIEW AVE  10/21/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Junk motorhome Staff
Initiated 



20-

000910 

MERRITT, WILLIAM P JR 421 NORTH LAKEVIEW AVE  10/21/2020 Littering Debris  Staff
Initiated 

20-

000911 

SHAW, GEORGE W &
GEORGE W III 

819 EAST 4TH ST  10/21/2020 Littering Debris in back yard and back of
garage 

Staff
Initiated 

20-

000912 

WEIR, JEFFREY E SR 811  MAY ST  10/21/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Inoperable and unlicensed
vehicles 

Staff
Initiated 

20-

000912 

WEIR, JEFFREY E SR 811  MAY ST  10/21/2020 Littering Trash engine block tires and debris
around entire back yard 

Staff
Initiated 

20-

000913 

SINGH, BALJINDER 214 NORTH EAST   10/21/2020 Abandoned
Refrigerators 

 Staff
Initiated 

20-

000913 

SINGH, BALJINDER 214 NORTH EAST   10/21/2020 Littering  Staff
Initiated 

20-

000914 

KELLY, KIRSTEN H 800  DEWEY AVE  10/22/2020 Littering Debris along curb Staff
Initiated 

20-

000915 

CHAYER, JODY L & KARY
F 

236  PAYSON   10/22/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Inoperable vehicle on jack stands Staff
Initiated 

20-

000916 

REED, JAMES L JR 108 NORTH ELM ST  10/26/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Inoperable vehicle Staff
Initiated 

20-

000917 

FELIX, MARICELDA 208  EUSTIS   10/26/2020 Littering Sofa on curb furniture on porch Staff
Initiated 

20-

000918 

KIDA, JAMES E 911 WEST 3RD   10/26/2020 Littering Appliances in drive Staff
Initiated 

20- DEWOLFE, BETTY L 602  WILLIAM ST  10/26/2020 Littering Excess trash bags on porch and
neighbors fence 

Staff
Initiated 



000919 

20-

000921 

YOUNG, DONETTA K 507  ROOSEVELT AVE  10/26/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Car on jack stands.  Staff
Initiated 

20-

000922 

CANTWELL, JANIE 830  FRANKLIN ST  10/26/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Inoperable vehicles Phone 

20-

000922 

CANTWELL, JANIE 830  FRANKLIN ST  10/26/2020 Littering Debris in back yard and alley Phone 

20-

000923 

HAYES, RAY E JR &
PENNY M 

924 NORTH CHESTNUT   10/28/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Camper in grass alley. City right of
way 

Staff
Initiated 

20-

000924 

JACKSON, DANA 112  MAPLE AVE  10/28/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Camper Staff
Initiated 

20-

000924 

JACKSON, DANA 112  MAPLE AVE  10/28/2020 Littering Debris in brush pile Staff
Initiated 

20-

000925 

CORRAL, MANUEL &
CATARINA 

414  ROSS ST  10/28/2020 Odors From garage Staff
Initiated 

20-

000925 

CORRAL, MANUEL &
CATARINA 

414  ROSS ST  10/28/2020 Exterior
Structure
Property Areas,
Rodent
harborage 

Complaint of mice Staff
Initiated 

20-

000926 

BYSTRY, ELIZABETH 107  GOODRICH   10/28/2020 Littering Debris in alley behind garage Staff
Initiated 

PALMER, JAMES 518  ELLIOTT   10/28/2020 Littering Debris in drive by garage. Old tires Staff



20-

000927 

in front and brush piles in back. Initiated 

20-

000928 

TUMBLESON, MICHAEL T 707 SOUTH MAIN   10/28/2020 Littering Debris in drive and back yard Staff
Initiated 

20-

000929 

WILLIAMSON, KRAIG
DEAN 

621 NORTH TREMONT   10/29/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Inoperable motorhome Staff
Initiated 

20-

000930 

NEULEIB, KEVIN W &
BOELENS, JENNIFER A 

916 NORTH CHESTNUT   10/29/2020 Littering Sofa on curb Staff
Initiated 

20-

000931 

THOLIN, TWYLA K 506 EAST 7TH ST  10/29/2020 Swimming Pool
- Operation and
Maintenance 

Abandoned pool Staff
Initiated 

20-

000932 

CHARLETT, KYLE L 1101  LAKE ST  10/29/2020 Storage and
parking of
vehicles and
other personal
property 

Inoperable unlicensed vehicles Staff
Initiated 

20-

000933 

READER, TERRY J 138 EAST MCCLURE ST  10/30/2020 Abandoned
Refrigerators 

Fridge on back porch Staff
Initiated 

20-

000933 

READER, TERRY J 138 EAST MCCLURE ST  10/30/2020 Exterior
Structure
Property Areas,
Weeds 

Dead trees and brush piles Staff
Initiated 

20-

000934 

YOUNG, ANN DEARING &
MCBRIDE, TRAVIS &
JACOBSON, DAVID 

419  PERKINS   10/30/2020 Structure unfit
for human
occupancy 

CONDEMNED as UNFIT for
human occupancy. Structure is
insanitary and contains unsafe
levels of filth and debris. Photos on
file with KPD. 

In Person 





IEPA SUMMARY 
 

No communications with the IEPA for the month of October. 

MAINTENANCE SUMMARY 
 

BOCK INC. generated 33 preventive work orders for the month. All 33 work orders were 
completed. In addition to the preventive work orders, there was 3 corrective maintenance 
work orders performed. 

SAFETY SUMMARY 
 

Because safety is an important part of our daily practice, we have been without a loss time 
injury at the plant for 69 months. 

 

OPERATIONS SUMMARY 
 

Flow for the month averaged 2.187 MGD with the rainfall totaling 1.88 inches. 

Total KWH used for the month was 152,400. 

There were 5 values of the outfall 001 effluent that exceeded the permit limit for chloride 
concentration.  

Sludge applied to the field totaled 0 gallons for the month. 

 

 



DMR Copy of Record

Permit

Permit #: IL0029343 Permittee: KEWANEE, CITY OF Facility: KEWANEE STP

Major: Yes Permittee Address: 401 EAST THIRD STREET
KEWANEE, IL 61443

Facility Location: 194 FISCHER AVENUE
KEWANEE, IL 61413

Permitted Feature: 001
External Outfall

Discharge:  001-0
STP OUTFALL

   

Report Dates & Status

Monitoring Period: From 10/01/20 to 10/31/20 DMR Due Date: 11/25/20 Status: NetDMR Validated

Considerations for Form Completion

DMF LOAD LIMITS DISPLAYED

Principal Executive Officer

First Name: Stanley Title: Chief Operator Telephone: 309-852-2789

Last Name: Bockewitz

No Data Indicator (NODI)

Form NODI: --

Parameter Monitoring Location Season
#

Param.
NODI

  Quantity or Loading Quality or Concentration # of
Ex.

Frequency of Analysis Sample
TypeCode Name Qualifier

1
Value 1 Qualifier

2
Value 2 Units Qualifier

1
Value 1 Qualifier

2
Value 2 Qualifier

3
Value 3 Units

00300 Oxygen, dissolved [DO] 1 - Effluent Gross 1 --

Sample           = 8.24 = 8.24 = 7.63 19 - mg/L

0

01/07 - Weekly GR - GRAB

Permit
Req.

          >= 5.5 MO AV
MN

>= 4.0 MN WK
AV

>= 3.5 DAILY MN 19 - mg/L 01/07 - Weekly GR - GRAB

Value
NODI                            

00400 pH 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample           = 7.69     = 7.74 12 - SU

0

01/07 - Weekly GR - GRAB

Permit
Req.

          >= 6.0
MINIMUM

    <= 9.0 MAXIMUM 12 - SU 01/07 - Weekly GR - GRAB

Value
NODI                            

00530 Solids, total suspended 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample = 13.0 = 17.6 26 - lb/d     = 0.9 = 1.1 19 - mg/L

0

01/07 - Weekly CP -
COMPOS

Permit
Req.

<= 500.0 MO AVG <= 1001.0 DAILY MX 26 - lb/d     <= 12.0 MO
AVG

<= 24.0 DAILY MX 19 - mg/L 01/07 - Weekly CP -
COMPOS

Value
NODI                            

00600 Nitrogen, total [as N] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                   = 12.0 19 - mg/L

0

01/30 - Monthly CP -
COMPOS

Permit
Req.

                    Req Mon DAILY MX 19 - mg/L 01/30 - Monthly CP -
COMPOS

Value
NODI                            

00610 Nitrogen, ammonia total [as N] 1 - Effluent Gross 1 --

Sample = 0.2 = 0.3 26 - lb/d     < 0.015 < 0.015 19 - mg/L

0

01/07 - Weekly CP -
COMPOS

Permit
Req.

<= 54.0 MO AVG <= 183.0 DAILY MX 26 - lb/d     <= 1.3 MO AVG <= 4.4 DAILY MX 19 - mg/L 01/07 - Weekly CP -
COMPOS

Value
NODI                            

00610 Nitrogen, ammonia total [as N] 8 - Other Treatment, Process
Complete

1 --

Sample     = 0.2 26 - lb/d         < 0.015 19 - mg/L

0

01/07 - Weekly CP -
COMPOS

Permit
Req.

    <= 146.0 WKLY AVG 26 - lb/d         <= 3.5 WKLY AVG 19 - mg/L 01/07 - Weekly CP -
COMPOS

Value
NODI                            

00665 Phosphorus, total [as P] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                   = 2.0 19 - mg/L

0

01/30 - Monthly CP -
COMPOS

Permit
Req.

                    Req Mon DAILY MX 19 - mg/L 01/30 - Monthly CP -
COMPOS

Value
NODI                            

X
 00940

Chloride [as Cl] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample     = 15199.0 26 - lb/d         = 690.0 19 - mg/L

5

01/07 - Weekly CP -
COMPOS

Permit
Req.

    <= 20850.0 DAILY
MX

26 - lb/d         <= 500.0 DAILY MX 19 - mg/L 01/07 - Weekly CP -
COMPOS

Value
NODI                            

50050
Flow, in conduit or thru treatment
plant

1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample = 1.820405 = 2.69153 03 -
MGD

             

0

99/99 - Continuous  

Permit
Req.

  Req Mon MO
AVG

  Req Mon DAILY
MX

03 -
MGD

              99/99 - Continuous  

Value
NODI                            



50060 Chlorine, total residual 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit
Req.

                  <= 0.038 DAILY MX 19 - mg/L CL/OC -
Chlorination/Occurances

GR - GRAB

Value
NODI                     9 - Conditional Monitoring - Not Required This

Period
     

74055 Coliform, fecal general 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                   = 615.0 13 -
#/100mL

0

01/30 - Monthly GR - GRAB

Permit
Req.

                    Req Mon DAILY MX 13 -
#/100mL

01/30 - Monthly GR - GRAB

Value
NODI                            

80082 BOD, carbonaceous [5 day, 20 C] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample = 12.7 = 21.2 26 - lb/d     = 0.809 = 0.961 19 - mg/L

0

01/07 - Weekly CP -
COMPOS

Permit
Req.

<= 417.0 MO AVG <= 834.0 DAILY MX 26 - lb/d     <= 10.0 MO
AVG

<= 20.0 DAILY MX 19 - mg/L 01/07 - Weekly CP -
COMPOS

Value
NODI                            

Submission Note

If a parameter row does not contain any values for the Sample nor Effluent Trading, then none of the following fields will be submitted for that row: Units, Number of Excursions, Frequency of Analysis, and Sample Type.

Edit Check Errors

Parameter
Monitoring Location Field Type Description Acknowledge

Code Name

00940 Chloride [as Cl] 1 - Effluent Gross Quality or Concentration Sample Value 3 Soft The provided sample value is outside the permit limit.  (Error Code: 1 )Please verify that the value you have provided is correct. Yes

Comments

Chlorination did not occur this monitoring period.

Attachments
No attachments.

Report Last Saved By

KEWANEE, CITY OF

User: bockinc1992

Name: Stanley    Bockewitz  

E-Mail: stanb@bockinc.net  

Date/Time: 2020-11-17  09:33   (Time Zone: -06:00)

Report Last Signed By

User: bockinc1992

Name: Stanley    Bockewitz  

E-Mail: stanb@bockinc.net  

Date/Time: 2020-11-17  09:43   (Time Zone: -06:00)



DMR Copy of Record

Permit

Permit #: IL0029343 Permittee: KEWANEE, CITY OF Facility: KEWANEE STP

Major: Yes Permittee Address: 401 EAST THIRD STREET
KEWANEE, IL 61443

Facility Location: 194 FISCHER AVENUE
KEWANEE, IL 61413

Permitted Feature: INF
Internal Outfall

Discharge:  INF-L
INFLUENT MONITORING

   

Report Dates & Status

Monitoring Period: From 10/01/20 to 10/31/20 DMR Due Date: 11/25/20 Status: NetDMR Validated

Considerations for Form Completion

 

Principal Executive Officer

First Name: Stanley Title: Chief Operator Telephone: 309-852-2789

Last Name: Bockewitz

No Data Indicator (NODI)

Form NODI: --

Parameter Monitoring Location Season # Param. NODI   Quantity or Loading Quality or Concentration # of Ex. Frequency of Analysis Sample Type

Code Name Qualifier 1 Value 1 Qualifier 2 Value 2 Units Qualifier 1 Value 1 Qualifier 2 Value 2 Qualifier 3 Value 3 Units

00310 BOD, 5-day, 20 deg. C G - Raw Sewage Influent 0 --

Sample               = 60.6     19 - mg/L

0

01/07 - Weekly CP - COMPOS

Permit Req.                 Req Mon MO AVG     19 - mg/L 01/07 - Weekly CP - COMPOS

Value NODI                            

00530 Solids, total suspended G - Raw Sewage Influent 0 --

Sample               = 178.0     19 - mg/L

 

01/07 - Weekly CP - COMPOS

Permit Req.                 Req Mon MO AVG     19 - mg/L 01/07 - Weekly CP - COMPOS

Value NODI                            

50050 Flow, in conduit or thru treatment plant G - Raw Sewage Influent 0 --

Sample = 2.187817 = 3.47886 03 - MGD              

0

99/99 - Continuous  

Permit Req.   Req Mon MO AVG   Req Mon DAILY MX 03 - MGD               99/99 - Continuous  

Value NODI                            

Submission Note

If a parameter row does not contain any values for the Sample nor Effluent Trading, then none of the following fields will be submitted for that row: Units, Number of Excursions, Frequency of Analysis, and Sample Type.

Edit Check Errors

No errors.

Comments

 

Attachments
No attachments.

Report Last Saved By

KEWANEE, CITY OF

User: bockinc1992

Name: Stanley    Bockewitz  

E-Mail: stanb@bockinc.net  

Date/Time: 2020-11-17  09:38   (Time Zone: -06:00)

Report Last Signed By

User: bockinc1992

Name: Stanley    Bockewitz  

E-Mail: stanb@bockinc.net  

Date/Time: 2020-11-17  09:44   (Time Zone: -06:00)



DMR Copy of Record

Permit

Permit #: IL0029343 Permittee: KEWANEE, CITY OF Facility: KEWANEE STP

Major: Yes Permittee Address: 401 EAST THIRD STREET
KEWANEE, IL 61443

Facility Location: 194 FISCHER AVENUE
KEWANEE, IL 61413

Permitted Feature: 003
External Outfall

Discharge:  003-0
EMERGENCY HIGH LEVEL OVERFLOW

   

Report Dates & Status

Monitoring Period: From 10/01/20 to 10/31/20 DMR Due Date: 11/25/20 Status: NetDMR Validated

Considerations for Form Completion

 

Principal Executive Officer

First Name: Stanley Title: Chief Operator Telephone: 309-852-2789

Last Name: Bockewitz

No Data Indicator (NODI)

Form NODI: --

Parameter Monitoring Location Season # Param. NODI   Quantity or Loading Quality or Concentration # of Ex. Frequency of Analysis Sample Type

Code Name Qualifier 1 Value 1 Qualifier 2 Value 2 Units Qualifier 1 Value 1 Qualifier 2 Value 2 Qualifier 3 Value 3 Units

00310 BOD, 5-day, 20 deg. C 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                     Opt Mon DAILY MX 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                     C - No Discharge      

00530 Solids, total suspended 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                     Opt Mon DAILY MX 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                     C - No Discharge      

74055 Coliform, fecal general 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                     Opt Mon DAILY MX 13 - #/100mL DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                     C - No Discharge      

74071 Flow 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.       Opt Mon MO TOTAL 4K - #/mo               DL/DS - Daily When Discharging  

Value NODI       C - No Discharge                    

Submission Note

If a parameter row does not contain any values for the Sample nor Effluent Trading, then none of the following fields will be submitted for that row: Units, Number of Excursions, Frequency of Analysis, and Sample Type.

Edit Check Errors

No errors.

Comments

 

Attachments
No attachments.

Report Last Saved By

KEWANEE, CITY OF

User: bockinc1992

Name: Stanley    Bockewitz  

E-Mail: stanb@bockinc.net  

Date/Time: 2020-11-12  08:20   (Time Zone: -06:00)

Report Last Signed By

User: bockinc1992

Name: Stanley    Bockewitz  

E-Mail: stanb@bockinc.net  

Date/Time: 2020-11-17  09:41   (Time Zone: -06:00)



DMR Copy of Record

Permit

Permit #: IL0029343 Permittee: KEWANEE, CITY OF Facility: KEWANEE STP

Major: Yes Permittee Address: 401 EAST THIRD STREET
KEWANEE, IL 61443

Facility Location: 194 FISCHER AVENUE
KEWANEE, IL 61413

Permitted Feature: 004
External Outfall

Discharge:  004-0
EXCESS FLOW LAGOON OUTFALL- EAST LAGOON

   

Report Dates & Status

Monitoring Period: From 10/01/20 to 10/31/20 DMR Due Date: 11/25/20 Status: NetDMR Validated

Considerations for Form Completion

NUMBER OF DAYS OF DISCHARGE:

Principal Executive Officer

First Name: Stanley Title: Chief Operator Telephone: 309-852-2789

Last Name: Bockewitz

No Data Indicator (NODI)

Form NODI: --

Parameter Monitoring Location Season # Param. NODI   Quantity or Loading Quality or Concentration # of Ex. Frequency of Analysis Sample Type

Code Name Qualifier 1 Value 1 Qualifier 2 Value 2 Units Qualifier 1 Value 1 Qualifier 2 Value 2 Qualifier 3 Value 3 Units

00300 Oxygen, dissolved [DO] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.             Req Mon MO AV MN   Req Mon MN WK AV   Req Mon DAILY MN 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI             C - No Discharge   C - No Discharge   C - No Discharge      

00310 BOD, 5-day, 20 deg. C 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.               <= 30.0 MO AVG <= 45.0 WKLY AVG 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                 C - No Discharge   C - No Discharge      

00400 pH 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.           >= 6.0 MINIMUM     <= 9.0 MAXIMUM 12 - SU DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI             C - No Discharge       C - No Discharge      

00530 Solids, total suspended 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.               <= 30.0 MO AVG <= 45.0 WKLY AVG 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                 C - No Discharge   C - No Discharge      

00610 Nitrogen, ammonia total [as N] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                     Req Mon DAILY MX 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                     C - No Discharge      

00665 Phosphorus, total [as P] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                     Req Mon DAILY MX 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                     C - No Discharge      

50060 Chlorine, total residual 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                   <= 0.75 DAILY MX 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                     C - No Discharge      

74055 Coliform, fecal general 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                   <= 400.0 DAILY MX 13 - #/100mL DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                     C - No Discharge      

82220 Flow, total 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.       Req Mon MO TOTAL 03 - MGD               DL/DS - Daily When Discharging CN - CONTIN

Value NODI       C - No Discharge                    

Submission Note

If a parameter row does not contain any values for the Sample nor Effluent Trading, then none of the following fields will be submitted for that row: Units, Number of Excursions, Frequency of Analysis, and Sample Type.

Edit Check Errors

No errors.

Comments

 

Attachments
No attachments.

Report Last Saved By

KEWANEE, CITY OF

User: bockinc1992



Name: Stanley    Bockewitz  

E-Mail: stanb@bockinc.net  

Date/Time: 2020-11-12  08:22   (Time Zone: -06:00)

Report Last Signed By

User: bockinc1992

Name: Stanley    Bockewitz  

E-Mail: stanb@bockinc.net  

Date/Time: 2020-11-17  09:40   (Time Zone: -06:00)



DMR Copy of Record

Permit

Permit #: IL0029343 Permittee: KEWANEE, CITY OF Facility: KEWANEE STP

Major: Yes Permittee Address: 401 EAST THIRD STREET
KEWANEE, IL 61443

Facility Location: 194 FISCHER AVENUE
KEWANEE, IL 61413

Permitted Feature: 005
External Outfall

Discharge:  005-0
EXCESS FLOW LAGOON OUTFALL-WEST LAGOON

   

Report Dates & Status

Monitoring Period: From 10/01/20 to 10/31/20 DMR Due Date: 11/25/20 Status: NetDMR Validated

Considerations for Form Completion

NUMBER OF DAYS OF DISCHARGE:

Principal Executive Officer

First Name: Stanley Title: Chief Operator Telephone: 309-852-2789

Last Name: Bockewitz

No Data Indicator (NODI)

Form NODI: --

Parameter Monitoring Location Season # Param. NODI   Quantity or Loading Quality or Concentration # of Ex. Frequency of Analysis Sample Type

Code Name Qualifier 1 Value 1 Qualifier 2 Value 2 Units Qualifier 1 Value 1 Qualifier 2 Value 2 Qualifier 3 Value 3 Units

00300 Oxygen, dissolved [DO] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.             Req Mon MO AV MN   Req Mon MN WK AV   Req Mon DAILY MN 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI             C - No Discharge   C - No Discharge   C - No Discharge      

00310 BOD, 5-day, 20 deg. C 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.               <= 30.0 MO AVG <= 45.0 WKLY AVG 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                 C - No Discharge   C - No Discharge      

00400 pH 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.           >= 6.0 MINIMUM     <= 9.0 MAXIMUM 12 - SU DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI             C - No Discharge       C - No Discharge      

00530 Solids, total suspended 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.               <= 30.0 MO AVG <= 45.0 WKLY AVG 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                 C - No Discharge   C - No Discharge      

00610 Nitrogen, ammonia total [as N] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                     Req Mon DAILY MX 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                     C - No Discharge      

00665 Phosphorus, total [as P] 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                     Req Mon DAILY MX 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                     C - No Discharge      

50060 Chlorine, total residual 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                   <= 0.75 DAILY MX 19 - mg/L DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                     C - No Discharge      

74055 Coliform, fecal general 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.                   <= 400.0 DAILY MX 13 - #/100mL DL/DS - Daily When Discharging GR - GRAB

Value NODI                     C - No Discharge      

82220 Flow, total 1 - Effluent Gross 0 --

Sample                        

 

   

Permit Req.       Req Mon MO TOTAL 03 - MGD               DL/DS - Daily When Discharging CN - CONTIN

Value NODI       C - No Discharge                    

Submission Note

If a parameter row does not contain any values for the Sample nor Effluent Trading, then none of the following fields will be submitted for that row: Units, Number of Excursions, Frequency of Analysis, and Sample Type.

Edit Check Errors

No errors.

Comments

 

Attachments
No attachments.

Report Last Saved By

KEWANEE, CITY OF

User: bockinc1992



Name: Stanley    Bockewitz  

E-Mail: stanb@bockinc.net  

Date/Time: 2020-11-12  08:23   (Time Zone: -06:00)

Report Last Signed By

User: bockinc1992

Name: Stanley    Bockewitz  

E-Mail: stanb@bockinc.net  

Date/Time: 2020-11-17  09:39   (Time Zone: -06:00)



Influent - Daily Total Total
Average Flow Electrical Usage Rainfall
(gallons per day) (kilowatt hours) (inches)

1
January 

2020 4,477,482 192,000 3.40

2
February 

2020 4,641,649 172,800 0.62

3
March   
2020 4,449,766 157,200 2.54

4
April      
2020 4,348,751 166,800 3.43

5
May       
2020 4,845,807 170,400 4.47

6
June     
2020 2,846,779 156,000 1.75

7
July       
2020 2,415,542 153,600 4.22

8
August 
2020 1,778,268 144,000 0.58

9
September 

2020 3,632,466 154,800 7.60

10
October 

2020 2,187,817 152,400 1.88

11
November 

2019 3,639,352 174,000 1.79

12
December 

2019 4,290,928 178,800 1.69

43,554,607 1,972,800 33.97

3,629,551 164,400 2.83

Kewanee, Illinois
Wastewater Treatment Plant

Submitted by
Twelve Month Moving Average Report

Bock Inc.

The Plant Design Maximum Flow is
5,000,000 Gallons per Day.

Average

The Plant Design Average Flow is
2,000,000 Gallons per Day.

Date

Total

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Influent - Daily Average Flow (gallons per day)

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Total Electrical Usage (kilowatt hours)

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Total  Rainfall (inches)





  ITEM A 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE November 30, 2020 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Discussion only 

AGENDA TITLE Discussion concerning an ordinance allowing outdoor 
wood boilers within City Limits. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Community Development 

PRESENTER Keith Edwards, Director of Community Development 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

N/A, including recurring 
charges 

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE To discuss an ordinance updating our Outdoor 
Burning ordinance.  The new ordinance adds some  
definitions and clarifying what can and cannot be 
burned.   



  ITEM A 

BACKGROUND I have had a contractor and a couple of residents 
inquire about outdoor boilers since September of 
2019 which is when we first discussed outdoor 
boilers with the council. 
When researching model ordinances, I found that 
most added the regulations for these devices within 
the open burning / fire prevention section of the 
codes.  I found one ordinance that had a good set of 
definitions are better explained what can and what 
cannot be burned.  So it seemed like a good time to 
add some updates to our code.  Everything in our 
current code exists within this new code.  The new 
code only adds definitions and clarity on what can be 
burned, how firewood should be stored, a section on 
outdoor boilers and a brief section on patio wood-
burning units. 



  ITEM A 

SPECIAL NOTES Concerning section 94.05:  I was not able to find a 
model code for the storage of firewood that seemed 
to fit our needs.  When googling “proper storage of 
firewood”, I stumbled across a page for manufacture 
of log splitters that had information concerning the 
proper storage of firewood.  I incorporated the 
information from that page into this section of the 
code. 
Concerning section 94.10:  IF the council chooses to 
allow outdoor boilers, the question keeps coming to 
mind should a special use permit be required.  By 
doing so, it would fore notification to every property 
owner within 300 feet of the proposed boiler site. 
The IRC requires chimneys on residential structures 
to be installed not less than 2 feet above the roof and 
not less than 2 feet above any portion of the building 
within 10 feet.  The argument could be made that the 
outdoor boiler, if located greater than 10 feet away 
from any structure would not require more than a 15 
feet stack.  On the other hand, the chimney 
discussed in the IRC is not used 365 days a year and 
instead is only utilized during the colder months for 
the most part, whereas the stack on an outdoor boiler 
could be used 365 days a year should someone with 
to heat their water with it. 
Concerning section 94.12:  The question of patio 
wood-burning units (portable fire pits, etc) comes up 
all the time.  Our code has never included a section 
for these devices.  This section simply speaks to 
what can and cannot be burned, a recommended 
distance from structures and that the use of such a 
device cannot cause a nuisance to a neighbor. 



  ITEM A 

ANALYSIS What is an outdoor wood boiler?  (From Wikipedia). 
The outdoor wood boiler is a variant on the indoor 
wood, oil or gas boiler. An outdoor wood boiler or 
outdoor wood stove is a unit about 4-6 feet wide and 
around 10 feet long. It is made up of four main parts- 
the firebox, which can be either round or square, the 
water jacket, the heat exchanger, and the weather 
proof housing. The fire box ranges from 2 to 5 feet 
long and can be as tall as 4 feet. The firebox and 
heat exchanger are surrounded by water or a glycol-
water solution, which absorb heat from the burning 
wood. The heated water is generally circulated 
through insulated underground lines to a heating 
load, where the heat can be transferred from the 
water to various heat emitters. 

Chimney’s and Smoke Stacks: 
The International Residential Code (IRC) Concerning 
chimney height states: 
R1003.9 Termination.  Chimneys shall extend at least 
2 feet higher than any portion of a building within 10 
feet, but shall not be less than 3 feet above the 
highest point where the chimney passes through the 
roof. 

This termination requirement, if on the primary 
structure, will keep the peak of the chimney high 
enough in the air and provide enough updraft, in most 
situations, to keep smoke from a typical fireplace or 
wood burning stove from becoming a nuisance.  This 
is something to keep in mind when considering 
outdoor wood boilers.  Though these devices would 
be installed more than 10 feet from the primary 
structures (in most cases), to extend the chimney to a 
height that may help keep the smoke from becoming 
a nuisance would require guy wiring for support.  The 
guy wiring itself may be considered an eyesore by 
some? 
Other Municipalities: 
Performing a quick Google search for ordinances of 
other municipalitys results in a mix of opinions.   

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

 



  ITEM A 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A     

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff requests guidance from Council and Mayor.   

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

N/A 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Photos from google search 

 

 

 
 



  ITEM A 

 
 

 
 

 



When researching ordinances for outdoor wood boilers, I came across a model ordinance that 
included some definitions that our current ordinance was lacking.  It also included some language 
pertaining to patio burning units.  I added these definitions to our Code as well as a brief section 
addressing patio burning units.  Outdoor boilers were included within the open burning section of the 
model ordinance which is why I incorporated it within Chapter 94 of our Code.   

Chapter 94:  Fire Prevention; Fireworks; Outdoor Burning   

§94.00  PURPOSE; APPLICABILITY; SEVERABILITY  

(A) Purpose.  This ordinance is intended to promote the public health, safety and welfare and to 
safeguard the health, comfort, living conditions, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City of 
Kewanee by regulating the air pollution and fire hazards of outdoor burning.  

(B) Applicability.  This ordinance applies to all outdoor burning within the City of Kewanee.  
(1) This ordinance does not apply to grilling or cooking food using charcoal, wood, propane 

or natural gas in cooking or grilling appliances.  
(2) This ordinance does not apply to burning for the purpose of generating heat in a stove, 

furnace, fireplace or other heating device within a building used for human or animal 
habitation.  

(3) This ordinance does not apply to the use of propane, acetylene, natural gas, gasoline or 
kerosene in a device intended for heating, construction or maintenance activities.  

(C) Severability.  Should any portion of this ordinance be declared unconstitutional or invalid by a 
court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected.  

§94.01  DEFINITIONS  

Definitions.  For the purpose of this section the following definitions shall apply unless the context 
clearly indicates or requires a different meaning. 

APPROVED INCINERATORS.  Any incinerator for which a current permit has been granted by the Illinois 
Environmental Protection Agency.  Any container used as a burning barrel or other similar device shall 
not be considered to be an approved incinerator. 

BURNING BARREL.  Any barrel, receptacle or container used to burn trash, garbage, refuse or waste and 
not constituting an approved incinerator. 

CAMPFIRE.  Means a small outdoor fire intended for recreation or cooking but not including a fire 
intended for disposal of waste wood or refuse.  

CLEAN WOOD.  Means natural wood which has not been painted, varnished or coated with a similar 
material; has not been pressure treated with preservatives; and does not contain resins or glues as in 
plywood or other composite wood products.  

CONSTRUCTION AND DEMOLITION WASTE.  Means building waste materials, including but not limited 
to waste shingles, insulation, lumber, treated wood, painted wood, wiring, plastics, packaging, and 
rubble that results from construction, remodeling, repair, and demolition operations on a house, 
commercial or industrial building, or other structure.  



LANDSCAPE WASTE.  Any vegetable or plant refuse, including weeds, leaves, grass, shrubbery, yard 
trimmings and tree limbs, but not to include garbage, agricultural waste, refuse, trash or other waste. 

OPEN BURNING.  Means kindling or maintaining a fire where the products of combustion are emitted 
directly into the ambient air without passing through a stack or a chimney. This includes burning in a 
burn barrel.  

OUTDOOR BURNING.  Means open burning or burning in an outdoor wood furnace or patio wood-
burning unit.  

OUTDOOR WOOD FURNACE.  Also known as an outdoor wood-fired boiler, outdoor wood-burning 
appliance, or hydronic heater, means a fuel-burning device that is designed to burn clean wood or other 
approved solid fuels and is not located within a building intended for habitation by humans or domestic 
animals; and heats building space and/or water through the distribution, typically through pipes, of a 
fluid heated in the device, typically water or a mixture of water and antifreeze.  

PATIO WOOD-BURNING UNIT.   Means a chimnea, patio warmer, or other portable wood-burning 
device used for outdoor recreation and/or heating.  

REFUSE.  Means any waste material except trees, logs, brush, stumps, leaves, grass clippings, and other 
vegetative matter.  

§94.02  GENERAL PROHIBITION ON OPEN BURNING  

Open burning is prohibited in the City of Kewanee unless the burning is specifically permitted by this 
ordinance.  

(A) Open burning of the following materials is prohibited. 
(1) Refuse 
(2) Construction and demolition waste. 
(3) Hazardous substances including but not limited to batteries, household chemicals, 

pesticides, used oil, gasoline, paints, varnishes, and solvents. 
(4) Furniture and appliances. 
(5) Tires. 
(6) Any plastic materials including but not limited to nylon, PVC, ABS, polystyrene or 

urethane foam, and synthetic fabrics, plastic films and plastic containers. 
(7) Corrugated cardboard, container board, office paper. 
(8) Treated or painted wood including but not limited to plywood, composite wood 

products or other wood products that are painted, varnished or treated with 
preservatives. 

(9) Grass clippings and weeds. 
(B) It shall be unlawful for any person to maintain or use a burning barrel. 
(C) Open burning shall be permitted in the city in any approved incinerator at any time 

provided that the approved incinerator is being operated in compliance with the 
requirements of the Illinois Environment Protection Act and the rules and regulations of 
the Illinois Pollution Control Board and the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency. 

(D) The burning of landscape waste shall be permitted only in compliance with the 
requirements of the Illinois Environmental Protection Act and the rules and regulations 



of the Illinois Pollution Board and the rules and regulations of the Illinois Environmental 
Protection Agency, and shall be subject to the following restrictions: 
(1) Only on the premises on which waste is generated and the following criteria are 

followed; 
(a) Landscape material has dried, or is dry and will not result in excessive 

smoke; 
(b) No burning shall be conducted within 10 feet of any structure or 

combustible material, or directly under any tree limbs or wires; 
(c) Burn piles must be kept manageable by those attending to them, and 

attendant must be able to see around pile while it is burning which shall 
result in burn piles of less than four feet in height; 

(d) Ash resulting from the burning of landscape waste should be allowed to 
cool through the adding of water, and shall then be disposed of; 

(e) Burning of grass clippings and weeds prohibited; 
(2) Only on Wednesdays and Saturdays, during the months of April, May, June, 

September, October and November, or on other days as stipulated in a motion 
approved by the City Council assembled, from 8:00 a.m. until sunset when 
permitted by the Chief of the Fire Department of the city. All fires must be 
attended by a responsible person and shall be extinguished and no fires shall be 
allowed to remain burning or continue to smoke after sunset. Open burning 
shall be prohibited when the following conditions exist as determined by the 
Fire Chief or his designated agent: 
(a) Wind speed exceeding 20 miles per hour. 
(b) Wind speed less than 5 miles per hour.  
(c) Drought conditions which present an excessive risk for spreading of the 

open fire. 
(d) During a water shortage or other emergency. 
(e) If more than one-half inch of rain has fallen in the prior two days of the 

allowed burn day, which would result in heavy smoke. 
(f) An outdoor event of community-wide interest may be disrupted by 

nuisance smoke from said landscape waste burning activities. 
(g) If a severe weather event (thunderstorms, tornado, severe wind or other 

weather event) is determined to be a possible safety concern as forecast in 
the Hazardous Weather Outlook published by the National Weather Service 
office in the Quad Cities or by data received from any other NWS or NOSA 
group. These reports shall be read and considered on each burn day prior to 
determination to prohibit or allow open burning. 

(3) The determination to prohibit open burning shall be made prior to 8:00 a.m. on 
Wednesdays and Saturdays and communicated to the Police Department, local 
media and citizens.  Once made, the determination to prohibit open burning will 
apply for the remainder of the day on which the determination is made and 
shall not be reversed.  It is the responsibility of each citizen openly burning 
landscape waste to verify that open burning is allowed for the day of burning 
prior to commencing such activity. 



(E) The maintenance and use of camp fires and barbecue grills for cooking purposes shall 
not be prohibited by this section except that said camp fires or barbecue grills shall be 
extinguished immediately after their use for cooking purposes and said camp fires and 
barbecue grills shall otherwise comply with the requirements of the Illinois 
Environmental Protection Act and the rules and regulations of the Illinois Pollution 
Control Board and the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency. 

(F) Open burning of landscape waste on public streets, alleys, highways and public 
sidewalks shall be prohibited. 

(G) The prohibition of and restriction against open burning as provided hereunder shall not 
apply in the event of the granting of a permit which may be authorized in the exercise of 
the appropriate discretion of the Fire Chief, Code Enforcement Officer or designee, 
which application for permit shall be considered in conjunction with cleanup efforts as 
directed or approved by the City Code Enforcement Officer, provided all previous 
stipulations hereunder are met. 

 

§94.05  STORAGE OF FIREWOOD  
(This section was added to help set standards for storage of firewood.  The information is based off of 
information found online by googling “proper storage of firewood”.) 
Storage of firewood for use shall be done in accordance with the following provisions: 

(A) Firewood shall be stored only upon the parcel for which it will be used. 
(B) Firewood shall be stored only in the backyard and setback from property lines the same 

distance as required for an accessory structure pursuant to §155.106. 
(C) It shall be prohibited to store firewood in an unorganized pile. 
(D) Firewood shall not be stored in direct contact with the ground.   
(E) Firewood shall be stored using a log rack or pallets and posts. 

(1) If using pallets and posts, place the pallet on the ground and place posts or stakes at 
each corner.  Additional posts shall be placed close enough together to keep the 
firewood from rolling off the sides. 

(F) Firewood shall not be stacked higher than 6 feet. 
(G) A cover to protect the firewood from rain and snow may be used across the top of the 

stack leaving the front and back of the stack fully open so moisture can escape allowing 
the firewood to breathe.   

 

§94.10  OUTDOOR WOOD BOILERS 

Outdoor wood boilers installed on or after [effective date] must conform with the following provisions:  
(The question that comes to mind is:  should a Special Use Permit be required in order to install an 
outdoor wood boiler?  By doing so, it would force notification out to every residence within 300 feet 
of the proposed boiler.  This would give the neighbors an opportunity to object should there be a 
health concern.) 

(A) Only outdoor wood boilers that are compliant with the EPA’s Phase 2 emission 
standards shall be permitted within the City.  

(B) The outdoor wood boiler shall comply with all setbacks as required for an accessory 
structure pursuant to §155.106. 



(C) The outdoor wood boiler shall be constructed, established, installed, operated and 
maintained in conformance with the manufacturer’s instructions and the requirements 
of this ordinance. In the event of a conflict, the requirements of this ordinance shall 
apply unless the manufacturer’s instructions are stricter, in which case the 
manufacturer’s instructions shall apply. 

(D) The outdoor wood furnace shall be laboratory tested and listed to appropriate safety 
standards such as UL, CAN/CSA, ANSI or other applicable safety standards. 

(E) The outdoor wood furnace shall be located on the property in compliance with 
manufacturer’s recommendations and or testing and listing requirements for clearance 
to combustible materials. 

(F) The outdoor wood boiler shall have a permanently attached stack with a minimum stack 
height of 15 feet above the ground that also extends at least two feet above the highest 
peak of any residence located less than 100 feet from the outdoor wood furnace.  The 
stack shall be installed, supported and maintained per manufacture specifications. 
(The IRC requires chimneys on residential structures to be installed not less than 2 feet 
above the roof and not less than 2 feet above any portion of the building within 10 
feet.  The argument could be made that the outdoor boiler, if located greater than 10 
feet away from any structure would not require more than a 15 feet stack.  On the 
other hand, the chimney discussed in the IRC is not used 365 days a year and instead is 
only utilized during the colder months for the most part, whereas the stack on an 
outdoor boiler could be used 365 days a year should someone with to heat their water 
with it.) 

(G) Fuel burned in the outdoor wood boiler shall be only clean wood, wood pellets made 
from clean wood, or other listed fuels specifically permitted by the manufacturer’s 
instructions such as fuel oil, natural gas or propane backup.  

(H) The following items are strictly prohibited in outdoor wood boilers:  
(1) Any material not listed in §94.10(B).  
(2) Wood that has been painted, varnished, or coated with similar material and/or has 

been pressure treated with preservatives and contains resins or glues as in plywood 
or other composite wood products. 

(3) Rubbish or garbage, including but not limited to food wastes, food packaging, food 
wraps. 

(4) Any plastic materials including but not limited to nylon, PVC, ABS, polystyrene or 
urethane foam, and synthetic fabrics, plastic films and plastic containers. 

(5) Rubber, including tires or other synthetic rubber-like products. 
(6) Newspaper, cardboard, or any paper with ink or dye products. 
(7) Any other items not specifically allowed by the manufacturer or this provision. 

 

§94.12  PATIO WOOD-BURNING UNITS. 

The use of Patio Wood-Burning Units shall conform with the following provisions: 
(A) Burning of the following materials in a Patio Wood-Burning Unit shall be prohibited. 

(1) Refuse 
(2) Construction and demolition waste. 



(3) Hazardous substances including but not limited to batteries, household 
chemicals, pesticides, used oil, gasoline, paints, varnishes, and solvents. 
(4) Furniture and appliances. 
(5) Tires. 
(6) Any plastic materials including but not limited to nylon, PVC, ABS, polystyrene or 
urethane foam, and synthetic fabrics, plastic films and plastic containers. 
(7) Corrugated cardboard, container board, office paper. 
(8) Treated or painted wood including but not limited to plywood, composite wood 
products or other wood products that are painted, varnished or treated with 
preservatives. 
(9) Grass clippings and weeds. 

 (B) Only clean firewood may be burned in a patio wood-burning unit. 
(C) The patio wood-burning unit shall be located at least 10 feet from the nearest structure. 
(D) The patio wood-burning unit shall not cause a nuisance to neighbors. 

 

 



  ITEM B 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE November 30, 2020 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 

N/A 

AGENDA TITLE Discussion of Acceptable Bids 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

City Council 

PRESENTER N/A 

FISCAL 
INFORMATION 

Cost as recommended: N/A  

Budget Line Item: Multiple 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation Required: [  ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE Allows for discussion and direction to be provided to staff 
regarding future bid processes.    



  ITEM B 

BACKGROUND During a recent public bid solicitation to sell excess City-
owned property, one bid received was in a legal and 
commonly used format previously unseen by some in 
Kewanee.  A City Council discussion ensued questioning 
the validity of the bid submittal and whether such bids 
should be allowed in the future.   
The City Attorney confirmed that a legal bid can include a 
base bid plus a potential escalating factor to increase the 
bid if specific conditions are met.  Allowing such bids will 
help the City maximize revenue intake in future solicitations.   
Should the City Council choose to prohibit these escalating 
factors in future bids, staff will include language to require 
bids to follow a unit price format where the total bid is based 
on a certain fixed dollar amount per specific unit of measure.  
This format is followed for our capital projects where bids 
include a fixed dollar amount per ton of rock, square yard of 
concrete, foot of pipe, etc.   
Staff has no preference and looks to Council for direction.  

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 

ANALYSIS As previously noted, the bids are legal if they meet certain 
conditions, which all submitted bids have, and allowing price 
escalators helps ensure the City obtains the highest rate of 
return for whatever is being sold.            

PUBLIC 
INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

N/A 

BOARD OR 
COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A    

STAFF 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A   

PROCUREMENT 
POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

N/A 

REFERENCE 
DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

N/A 

 



  ITEM C 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE November 30, 2020 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution #5254 

AGENDA TITLE A Resolution to approve a Resolution for 
Improvement Under the Illinois Highway Code for 
MFT Section 21-00110-0-PV in the amount of 
$851,251 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Public Works 

PRESENTER Scott Hinton, City Engineer 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

$851,251.00 

Budget Line Item: 15-41-514 

Balance Available $851,215.00 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[  ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE Approval of an Illinois Department of Transportation 
form titled Resolution for Improvement Under the 
Illinois Highway Code is necessary to appropriate 
REBUILD Illinois Funds for engineering design 
services and construction.   



  ITEM C 

BACKGROUND The City of Kewanee will receive $851,251 in 
REBUILD Illinois funds.  The City Council previously 
approved a $96,000.00 engineering agreement with 
IMEG to provide design services for the 
reconstruction of Lyle Street from Main to Elm, then 
Elm from Lyle to Oak.  The remaining $755,251 will 
be used for construction. 
This form is the vehicle through which the City of 
Kewanee requests approval from IDOT to appropriate 
the REBUILD Illinois Funds.  Approval of this form 
does not obligate the City to spend the funds nor 
does it approve contracts for the work or the 
expenditures.     

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 

ANALYSIS N/A 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

N/A 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A    

STAFF 
RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approving the form. 

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

Approving this form does not obligate or approve the 
expenditure of MFT Funds.        

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Form attached. 

 



 



Printed 11/24/2020 Page 1 of 5  

C 
O 
N 
S 
U 
L 
T 
A 
N 
T 

L 
O 
C 
A  
L 
 
A 
G 
E 
N 
C 
Y 

Preliminary Engineering 
Services Agreement 

For 
Motor Fuel Tax Funds 

Municipality 

City of Kewanee 

    Name 

IMEG Corp.  

Township  Address 

      623 26th AVenue 
  
County City 

Henry County  Rock Island 
  

Section State 

21-00110-00-PB Illinois 
  
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 27 day of October  , 2020 between the above Local 
Agency (LA) and Consultant (ENGINEER) and covers certain professional engineering services in connection with the 
improvement of the above SECTION.  Motor Fuel Tax Funds, allotted to the LA by the State of Illinois under the general 
supervision of the State Department of Transportation, hereinafter called the “DEPARTMENT”, will be used entirely or in part 
to finance ENGINEERING services as described under AGREEMENT PROVISIONS. 
 

Section Description 
 
Name Lyle Street and Elm Street 
            
Route       Length 0.22 Mi. 1150.00 FT  (Structure No.       ) 

           
Termini Lyle St. from Main St. (IL 78) thru intersection of S. Elm St., Elm St. from intersection of E Oak St. through Lyle St. 
 
Description:  Preliminary engineering to provide survey, design & bidding services Lyle & Elm St. with removal & replacement 
of pavement, new inlet, inlet reconstruction, storm sewer, manhole, sidewalk removal and replacement w/ ADA updates and 
misc. work. 

Agreement Provisions 

The Engineer Agrees, 
 

1. To perform or be responsible for the performance of the following engineering services for the LA, in connection with the 
 proposed improvements herein before described, and checked below: 
 

 a.   Make such detailed surveys as are necessary for the preparation of detailed roadway plans 
 

 b.   Make stream and flood plain hydraulic surveys and gather high water data, and flood histories for the preparation 
  of detailed bridge plans. 
 

 c.   Make or cause to be made such soil surveys or subsurface investigations including borings and soil profiles and 
  analyses thereof as may be required to furnish sufficient data for the design of the proposed improvement.   
  Such investigations are to be made in accordance with the current requirements of the DEPARTMENT. 
 

 d.   Make or cause to be made such traffic studies and counts and special intersection studies as may be required to 
  furnish sufficient data for the design of the proposed improvement. 
 

 e.   Prepare Army Corps of Engineers Permit, Department of Natural Resources-Office of Water Resources Permit,  
  Bridge waterway sketch, and/or Channel Change sketch, Utility plan and locations, and Railroad Crossing work 
  agreements. 
 

 f.    Prepare Preliminary Bridge design and Hydraulic Report, (including economic analysis of bridge or culvert types) 
  and high water effects on roadway overflows and bridge approaches. 
 

 g.   Make complete general and detailed plans, special provisions, proposals and estimates of cost and furnish the LA 
  with five (5) copies of the plans, special provisions, proposals and estimates.  Additional copies of any or all  
  documents, if required, shall be furnished to the LA by the ENGINEER at his actual cost for reproduction. 
 

 h.   Furnish the LA with survey and drafts in quadruplicate of all necessary right-of-way dedications, construction  
  easement and borrow pit and channel change agreements including prints of the corresponding plats and staking 
  as required. 
 

Note:  Four copies to be submitted to the Regional Engineer   



Printed 11/24/2020 Page 2 of 5  

 i.    Assist the LA in the tabulation and interpretation of the contractors’ proposals 
 

 j.    Prepare the necessary environmental documents in accordance with the procedures adopted by the   
  DEPARTMENT’s Bureau of Local Roads & Streets. 
 

 k.   Prepare the Project Development Report when required by the DEPARTMENT. 
 
(2) That all reports, plans, plats and special provisions to be furnished by the ENGINEER pursuant to the AGREEMENT, will 
 be in accordance with current standard specifications and policies of the DEPARTMENT.  It is being understood that all 
 such reports, plats, plans and drafts shall, before being finally accepted, be subject to approval by the LA and the 
 DEPARTMENT. 
 
(3) To attend conferences at any reasonable time when requested to do so by representatives of the LA or the Department. 
 
(4) In the event plans or surveys are found to be in error during construction of the SECTION and revisions of the plans or 
 survey corrections are necessary, the ENGINEER agrees that he will perform such work without expense to the LA, even 
 though final payment has been received by him.  He shall give immediate attention to these changes so there will be a 
 minimum delay to the Contractor. 
 
(5) That basic survey notes and sketches, charts, computations and other data prepared or obtained by the Engineer 
 pursuant to this AGREEMENT will be made available, upon request, to the LA or the DEPARTMENT without cost and 
 without restriction or limitations as to their use. 
 
(6) That all plans and other documents furnished by the ENGINEER pursuant to this AGREEMENT will be endorsed by him 
 and will show his professional seal where such is required by law. 
 
The LA Agrees, 
 
1. To pay the ENGINEER as compensation for all services performed as stipulated in paragraphs 1a, 1g, 1h, 1i, 2, 3, 5 and 
6 in accordance with one of the following methods indicated by a check mark: 
 

 a.   A sum of money equal to       percent of the awarded contract cost of the proposed improvement as  

  approved by the DEPARTMENT. 
 

 b.   A sum of money equal to the percent of the awarded contract cost for the proposed improvement as approved by 
  the DEPARTMENT based on the following schedule: 

 
Schedule for Percentages Based on Awarded Contract Cost 

 

  Awarded Cost Percentage Fees 
 Under $50,000         (see note) 
       % 
       % 
       % 
       % 
       % 
 
   Note:    Not necessarily a percentage.  Could use per diem, cost-plus or lump sum. 
 
2. To pay for services stipulated in paragraphs 1a, 1g, 1h, 1i & 1j of the ENGINEER AGREES at actual cost of 
 performing such work plus 15 percent to cover profit, overhead and readiness to serve - “actual cost” being defined 
 as material cost plus payrolls, insurance, social security and retirement deductions.  Traveling and other out-of-pocket 
 expenses will be reimbursed to the ENGINEER at his actual cost.  Subject to the approval of the LA, the ENGINEER may 
 sublet all or part of the services provided under the paragraph 1a, 1g, 1h, 1i & 1j If the ENGINEER sublets all  or part of  
       this work, the LA will pay the cost to the ENGINEER plus a five (5) percent service charge. 
 

 “Cost to Engineer” to be verified by furnishing the LA and the DEPARTMENT copies of invoices from the party doing the 
 work.  The classifications of the employees used in the work should be consistent with the employee classifications for 
 the services performed.  If the personnel of the firm, including the Principal Engineer, perform routine services that 
 should normally be performed by lesser-salaried personnel, the wage rate billed for such services shall be 
 commensurate with the work performed. Preliminary Engineering Services not to exceed $96,000.00 at the following 
hourly rates.  See supporting documentation attached.  

 



Printed 11/24/2020 Page 3 of 5  

2020 STANDARD HOURLY RATES - CIVIL 
Client Executive / Market Director $230 Land Surveyor III  $150 
Project Executive $190 Land Surveyor II $125 
Senior Civil Engineering Specialist $170 Land Surveyor I $105 
Senior Civil Engineer III $160 Senior Survey Technician $95 
Senior Civil Engineer II $145 Survey Technician III $90 
Senior Civil Engineer $135 Survey Technician II $70 
Civil Project Engineer II $130 Survey Technician I $60 
Civil Project Engineer $115 Construction Manager $130 
Civil Engineer $110 Senior Construction Administrator $125 
Senior Civil Technical Specialist $150 Construction Administrator $120 
Senior Civil Designer III $125 Senior Field Technician $115 
Senior Civil Designer II $120 Field Technician IV $90 
Senior Civil Designer $115 Field Technician III $85 
Civil Project Designer II $110 Field Technician II $80 
Civil Project Designer $105 Field Technician I $75 
Civil Designer IV $100 Administrative Assistant $75 
Civil Designer III $95   
Civil Designer II $90   
Civil Designer $85   
Design Technician II $75   
Design Technician $65   

 
3. That payments due the ENGINEER for services rendered in accordance with this AGREEMENT will be made as soon as 
 practicable after the services have been performed in accordance with the following schedule: 
 
 a. Upon completion of detailed plans, special provisions, proposals and estimate of cost - being the work required by 
  paragraphs 1a through 1g under THE ENGINEER AGREES - to the satisfaction of the LA and their approval by the 
  DEPARTMENT, 90 percent of the total fee due under this AGREEMENT based on the approved estimate of cost. 
 
 b. Upon award of the contract for the improvement by the LA and its approval by the DEPARTMENT, 100 percent of 
  the total fee due under the AGREEMENT based on the awarded contract cost, less any amounts paid under “a”  
  above. 
 
 By Mutual agreement, partial payments, not to exceed 90 percent of the amount earned, may be made from time to time 
 as the work progresses. 
 
4. That, should the improvement be abandoned at any time after the ENGINEER has performed any part of the services 
 provided for in paragraphs 1a, through 1h and prior to the completion of such services, the LA shall reimburse the 
 ENGINEER for his actual costs plus 15 percent incurred up to the time he is notified in writing of such 

 abandonment -“actual cost” being defined as in paragraph 2 of THE LA AGREES. 
 
5. That, should the LA require changes in any of the detailed plans, specifications or estimates except for those required 
 pursuant to paragraph 4 of THE ENGINEER AGREEs, after they have been approved by the DEPARTMENT, the LA will  
 pay the ENGINEER for such changes on the basis of actual cost plus 15 percent to cover profit, overhead and 

 readiness to serve -“actual cost” being defined as in paragraph 2 of THE LA AGREES.  It is understood that “changes” as 
 used in this paragraph shall in no way relieve the ENGINEER of his responsibility to prepare a complete and adequate 
 set of plans and specifications. 
 

 



Printed 11/24/2020 Page 4 of 5  

It is Mutually Agreed, 
 
1. That any difference between the ENGINEER and the LA concerning their interpretation of the provisions of this 
 Agreement shall be referred to a committee of disinterested parties consisting of one member appointed by the 
 ENGINEER, one member appointed by the LA and a third member appointed by the two other members for disposition 
 and that the committee’s decision shall be final. 
 
2. This AGREEMENT may be terminated by the LA upon giving notice in writing to the ENGINEER at his last known post 
 office address.  Upon such termination, the ENGINEER shall cause to be delivered to the LA all surveys, permits, 
 agreements, preliminary bridge design & hydraulic report, drawings, specifications, partial and completed estimates and 
 data, if any from traffic studies and soil survey and subsurface investigations with the understanding that all such 
 material becomes the property of the LA.  The ENGINEER shall be paid for any services completed and any services 
 partially completed in accordance with Section 4 of THE LA AGREES. 
 
3. That if the contract for construction has not been awarded one year after the acceptance of the plans by the LA and their 
 approval by the DEPARTMENT, the LA will pay the ENGINEER the balance of the engineering fee due to make 100 
 percent of the total fees due under this AGREEMENT, based on the estimate of cost as prepared by the ENGINEER and 
 approved by the LA and the DEPARTMENT. 
 
4. That the ENGINEER warrants that he/she has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide 
 employee working solely for the ENGINEER, to solicit or secure this contract, and that he/she has not paid or agreed to 
 pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the ENGINEER, any fee, commission, 
 percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this 
 contract.  For Breach or violation of this warranty the LA shall have the right to annul this contract without liability. 

 
  







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





RESOLUTION NO. 5254 
 
A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A RESOLUTION FOR IMPROVEMENT UNDER THE ILLINOIS 
HIGHWAY CODE FOR MFT SECTION 21-00110-0-PV IN THE AMOUNT OF $851,251 AND 
DECLARING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 
 
WHEREAS,  The City Council considers it in the best interest of the citizens of the City of Kewanee to use 

REBUILD Illinois funds for the purpose of reconstructing Lyle Street from US34/IL78 (Main 
Street) to Elm Street and Elm street from Lyle to Oak Streets; and, 

WHEREAS,  A Resolution for Improvement Under the Illinois Highway Code is necessary to use the 
REBUILD Illinois funds for this purpose; and, 

WHEREAS, The REBUILD Illinois funds will be used for both engineering design and construction; and,  

WHEREAS, Approval of this form appropriates REBUILD Illinois funds, but does not obligate the City of 
Kewanee to spend any monies nor does it approve any expenditures. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE THAT: 

Section 1 There is hereby appropriated the sum of $851,251 in REBUILD Illinois funds for the purpose of 
designing and reconstructing streets under the applicable provisions of the Illinois Highway 
Code. 

 
Section 2 Only Lyle and Elm streets as listed and described on the Resolution for Improvement Under the 

Illinois Highway Code, are eligible for the REBUILD Illinois funds as specified above. 
 
Section 3 The City Clerk shall, as soon as practicable, submit to the Illinois Department of Transportation, 

on forms furnished by said Department, a certified statement showing expenditures from and 
balances remaining in the account.   

 
Section 4 The City Clerk shall immediately transmit four certified copies of this resolution to the district 

office of the Illinois Department of Transportation at 619 Depot Avenue, Dixon, Illinois, 61021. 
 
Section 5 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as 

provided by law.   
 
 

   Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 30th day of November 2020. 
ATTEST: 
 

  

   
   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
 
 RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Gary Moore     
Council Member Mike Komnick     

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Chris Colomer     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     



RESOLUTION NO. 5255 
 
APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION DECLARING THE LINE SHAFT PUMP AND ALL ASSOCIATED 
ITEMS FROM WELL #4 AS SURPLUS AND DECLARING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN 
FULL FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 
 
WHEREAS,  The City Council approved replacing the line shaft pump in Well #4 with a new submersible 

pump in an effort to eliminate the recurring bacterial issues in Well #4; and, 

WHEREAS,  The line shaft pump, motor, piping, and other associated items are no longer of use the City; and, 

WHEREAS, The items still have value either for use by another community or as scrap iron; and, 

WHEREAS, Staff recommends the items be declared surplus so they may be disposed of in the manner most 
advantageous to the City. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE THAT: 

Section 1 The line shaft pump, motor, piping, and other pump-items from Well #4 are hereby declared 
surplus. 

 
Section 2 The Mayor, City Clerk, City Manager, and City Engineer are hereby authorized to dispose of the 

items in the manner most advantageous to the City. 
 
Section 3 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as 

provided by law.   
 

   Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 30th day of November 2020. 
ATTEST: 
 

  

   
   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
 
 RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Gary Moore     
Council Member Mike Komnick     

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Chris Colomer     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     



  ITEM E 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE November 30, 2020 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 

Resolution #5256 

AGENDA TITLE Approval of a Resolution accepting the lowest responsive and 
responsible bid from G&L Tank Sandblasting and Coating 
LLC, for Project #21-01, North Water Tower Coating, in the 
amount of $585,100.00. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Public Works 

PRESENTER Scott Hinton, City Engineer 

FISCAL 
INFORMATION 

Cost as recommended: $585,100.00.  

Budget Line Item: 32-42-850 

Balance Available $587,582 previously reserved for 
this project.   

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[  ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE Approval of the bid is necessary to proceed with the contract 
documents for the North Water Tower Coating project. 



  ITEM E 

BACKGROUND The coating systems on the North Water Tower are at the 
end of their useful lives and are no longer protecting the 
structure in many areas.  Also, there are several valves and 
other minor items in need of repair.  Staff worked with Dixon 
Engineering to evaluate the condition of the tower and 
determine the appropriate repairs and coatings.  A bid 
package was assembled with specifications to sandblast and 
coat the exterior and wet interior of the tower.  The base bid 
includes all necessary repair work and coatings.  An Alternate 
Bid item was included to install a mixer in the tank to aid in 
preventing ice and stagnant water.  Staff does not 
recommend accepting the Alternate Bid item.   
The project was advertised for bids on October 15, 2020 and 
bid packages were sent to 17 companies.  Eleven bids were 
received and publicly read on November 12, 2020 with the 
following results:    

  Base Bid Alternate Total Bid 
V & T $592,000 $20,000 $612,000 
G & L $585,100 $35,000 $620,100 
L & T $630,700 $19,900 $650,600 
MW Cole $667,975 $19,000 $686,975 
LC United $693,000 $18,000 $711,000 
Viking $744,100 $25,500 $769,600 
Era-Valdivia $797,900 $24,800 $822,700 
Utility Service $814,900 $36,100 $851,000 
Classic Protect $878,950 $26,900 $905,850 
Jetco $1,647,000 $50,000 $1,697,000 
Tecorp          Late Bid - Not Read   

SPECIAL NOTES V&T Painting, LLC submitted the lowest total bid, however 
G&L Tank Sandblasting and Coating LLC becomes the 
lowest responsive and responsible bidder by choosing to not 
accept the Alternate Bid for the mixer.  This is legal and is a 
common occurrence in the realm of contracting for public 
work.  As such, staff is comfortable recommending to not 
accept the Alternate Bid even though it changes the outcome 
of the bid.         



  ITEM E 

ANALYSIS Funds have been set aside in the Acquisition Fund for 
several years to fund the water tower coatings.  $587,582 
remains after funding the South Tower Coating earlier this 
year.  Additional funds will be budgeted in FY2022 for 
potential change orders.  While this is an expensive project, 
it’s more cost efficient to renew the coatings at this time than 
to defer the work until such time as structural repairs are also 
necessary.   

PUBLIC 
INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

This project was advertised on the City’s website and two 
times in the local newspaper. 

BOARD OR 
COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATIO
N 

N/A    

STAFF 
RECOMMENDATIO
N 

Staff recommends accepting the base bid of $585,100.00 
from G&L Tank Sandblasting and Coating LLC, Inc. and 
proceeding with execution of the contract documents.  Staff 
does not recommend accepting the alternate bid of $35,000 
for the mixer.  While the mixer may be beneficial at times, it’s 
not a necessity and the funds can be better spent in the 
future on higher priority items.  

PROCUREMENT 
POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

This project was competitively bid in accordance with the 
Illinois State Statutes which govern the procurement of 
publicly-funded construction contracts. 

REFERENCE 
DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Bid tabulation and contract attached. 

 



CITY OF KEWANEE

401 E. THIRD ST.

KEWANEE, IL 61443

BID TABULATION

Project:      #20-01 - North Water Tower Coating
Owner:       City of Kewanee V & T G&L Tank L & T MW Cole LC United
Bid Date:  11/12/2020 Engineer's 29585 Gramercy Ct 2101 Hwy 64 W 50502 Hunters 2989 Bonifay 3525 Barbara

Estimate Farmington Hills MI Shelbyville  TN Shelby Twp  MI The Villages FL Sterling Hts  MI

ITEM 

NO ITEM TOTAL COST TOTAL COST TOTAL COST TOTAL COST TOTAL COST TOTAL COST

A-1 RISER MANWAY $9,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,500.00 $11,000.00 $8,500.00 $10,000.00
A-2 WET INTERIOR ROOF HATCH 4,000.00 4,000.00 3,200.00 3,500.00 5,000.00 3,500.00
A-3 BALCONY HATCH 4,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 4,000.00 3,000.00
A-4 RISER HANDRAIL 7,000.00 5,000.00 4,000.00 9,800.00 4,500.00 4,500.00
A-5 OVERFLOW PIPE DISCHARGE 3,000.00 2,000.00 3,000.00 4,000.00 2,500.00 3,500.00
A-6 ROD ADJUSTMENT 2,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 8,000.00 7,500.00 4,000.00
A-7 FALL PREVENTION DEVICE 5,000.00 5,000.00 4,500.00 12,000.00 3,500.00 4,000.00
A-8 VANDAL GUARD 2,000.00 2,000.00 1,200.00 4,000.00 2,000.00 3,500.00
A-9 WET INTERIOR LADDER - ROOF TO BOWL 10,000.00 7,000.00 7,500.00 12,800.00 7,000.00 12,000.00
A-10 WET INTERIOR LADDER - TRANSITION CONE 3,000.00 2,000.00 2,500.00 3,500.00 3,375.00 2,000.00
A-11 SIDEWALL LADDER WITH ROOF PLATFORM 13,000.00 15,000.00 12,500.00 16,000.00 15,000.00 11,000.00
A-12 ROOF VENT 6,000.00 5,000.00 6,000.00 6,500.00 9,000.00 5,500.00
A-13 CATHODIC CLIPS AND COUPLING 2,000.00 1,000.00 2,000.00 2,800.00 2,000.00 2,500.00
A-14 ROOF HANDRAIL AND PAINTER'S RAILING 25,000.00 19,000.00 18,000.00 18,000.00 18,000.00 17,500.00
A-15 ANTENNA CABLE ROUTING 3,000.00 4,000.00 2,200.00 12,000.00 7,000.00 9,500.00

Subtotal Section A 98,000.00 81,000.00 77,100.00 126,900.00 98,875.00 96,000.00

B-1 EXTERIOR REPAINT WITH CONTAINMENT 420,000.00 390,000.00 390,000.00 390,000.00 433,000.00 447,500.00
B-2 WET INTERIOR REPAINT 130,000.00 120,000.00 115,000.00 110,000.00 133,600.00 147,000.00
B-3 SEAM SEALER 3,000.00 1,000.00 3,000.00 3,800.00 2,500.00 2,500.00

Subtotal Section B 553,000.00 511,000.00 508,000.00 503,800.00 569,100.00 597,000.00

Total Base Bid 651,000.00 592,000.00 585,100.00 630,700.00 667,975.00 693,000.00

C-1 MIXER-ALTERNATE BID 25,000.00 20,000.00 35,000.00 19,900.00 19,000.00 18,000.00

Total Bid $676,000.00 $612,000.00 $620,100.00 $650,600.00 $686,975.00 $711,000.00



CITY OF KEWANEE

401 E. THIRD ST.

KEWANEE, IL 61443

Viking Era-Valdivia Utility Service Classic Jetco
PO Box 24162 11909 S Ave O Protective 29693 N Rand 

Omaha NE Chicago IL Perry GA N7670 St Rd 25 Wauconda  IL
Menomonie WI

TOTAL COST TOTAL COST TOTAL COST TOTAL COST TOTAL COST

$10,500.00 $18,000.00 $7,200.00 $8,900.00 $13,000.00
5,500.00 5,000.00 1,700.00 2,900.00 5,000.00
2,500.00 5,000.00 1,300.00 2,100.00 5,000.00
7,500.00 12,000.00 7,000.00 8,950.00 8,000.00
5,000.00 5,000.00 1,400.00 4,600.00 10,000.00
3,000.00 15,000.00 2,500.00 8,200.00 20,000.00
2,800.00 8,000.00 900.00 7,800.00 10,000.00
2,800.00 2,000.00 900.00 2,500.00 5,000.00
8,500.00 15,000.00 6,300.00 4,750.00 25,000.00
2,500.00 4,000.00 1,500.00 1,700.00 5,000.00

14,500.00 22,000.00 11,100.00 11,900.00 40,000.00
10,500.00 7,000.00 7,200.00 6,200.00 10,000.00

4,000.00 4,000.00 1,200.00 4,300.00 6,000.00
28,000.00 22,000.00 15,100.00 26,400.00 40,000.00

6,000.00 18,000.00 6,800.00 9,350.00 25,000.00

113,600.00 162,000.00 72,100.00 110,550.00 227,000.00

478,500.00 507,900.00 568,500.00 541,100.00 980,000.00
149,000.00 120,000.00 170,600.00 223,500.00 390,000.00

3,000.00 8,000.00 3,700.00 3,800.00 50,000.00

630,500.00 635,900.00 742,800.00 768,400.00 1,420,000.00

744,100.00 797,900.00 814,900.00 878,950.00 1,647,000.00

25,500.00 24,800.00 36,100.00 26,900.00 50,000.00

$769,600.00 822,700.00 851,000.00 $905,850.00 $1,697,000.00





























1  

 
 
CONTRACT 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and concluded on ______ ,  

between G&L Tank Sandblasting and Coating LLC of 2101 Highway 64 W, Shelbyville 

TN  37160 hereinafter referred to as the “CONTRACTOR,” and the CITY OF KEWANEE, 

ILLINOIS, hereinafter referred to as the “CITY;” 

WITNESSETH, that the CONTRACTOR for and in consideration of the payments to 

be made to it by the CITY in the amount of FIVE HUNDRED EIGHTY FIVE THOUSAND 

ONE HUNDRED ($585,100.00) DOLLARS hereby covenants and agrees, to and with the 

CITY, that it shall and will in good and workmanlike manner, furnish all the labor and 

material for PROJECT #21-01, NORTH WATER TOWER COATING as set out in the plans 

and specifications. 

 
Such work to be under the direction and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer, and 

in accordance with the plans and specifications, which are a part of this contract.  The work 

to be commenced not later than 10 days after the execution of this contract unless mutually 

agreed to in writing between CITY and CONTRACTOR; to progress regularly and 

uninterruptedly after it shall have been begun excepting as shall otherwise be ordered by the 

CITY; and shall be finished and fully completed within the timeframe set forth in the 

specifications; the time of commencement, rate of progress and time of completion being 

essential conditions of this contract; PROVIDED, however that if the time of the performance 

of the contract herein be for any reason either expressly or by implication extended, such 



2  

extension shall not affect the validity of this contract. 

The CONTRACTOR further agrees that the unit prices submitted are for the purpose 

of obtaining a gross sum, and for use in computing the value of extras and deductions; that 

if there is a discrepancy between the gross sum bid and that resulting from the summation 

of the quantities multiplied by their respective unit prices, the latter shall apply.  When this 

contract shall be wholly carried out and completed on the part of the CONTRACTOR, and 

when said work has been accepted by the CITY, a sum of money shall be computed by 

multiplying the following unit prices by the quantity of items completed, it being understood 

that the following total sum of money listed is for the purpose of determining the amount of 

the performance, labor, material and maintenance bond only.  Such payment shall be made 

as provided for in the said specifications. 

This Contract calls for the construction of a “public work” within the meaning of the 

Illinois Prevailing Wage Act, 820 ILCS 130/.01 et seq. (“the Act”).  The Act requires 

contractors, subcontractors, and truckers to pay laborers, workers, and mechanics 

performing services on public works projects not less than the “prevailing rate of wages” 

(hourly cash wages plus fringe benefits) in the county where the work is performed.  The 

prevailing wage rates for projects for the CITY required by Ordinance No. 3932 are updated 

monthly by the Illinois Department of Labor and may be found at: 

https://www.illinois.gov/idol/Laws-Rules/CONMED/Documents/2016%20Rates/Rock%20Island.pdf 

 

All contractors, subcontractors, and truckers rendering services under this contract 

must comply with all requirements of the Act, including but not limited to, all wage, notice 

and record keeping duties.  All contractors, subcontractors, and truckers shall keep an 

accurate record showing the names and occupations of all laborers, workers, and 

mechanics employed by them on this contract, and also showing the actual hourly wages 

paid to each of such persons and shall preserve their weekly payroll records for a period of 

three (3) years from the date of completion of the contract.  Weekly certified payrolls shall be 

https://www.illinois.gov/idol/Laws-Rules/CONMED/Documents/2016%20Rates/Rock%20Island.pdf


3  

sent to the City Engineer. 

For further information, please refer to the Illinois Department of Labor’s website at: 
 
http://www.state.il.us/agency/idol. 

 
It is further provided that the CONTRACTOR shall upon the sealing of this contract, 

file with the CITY a good and sufficient two (2) year bond in the penal sum of FIVE 

HUNDRED EIGHTY FIVE THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED ($585,100.00)  DOLLARS 

conditioned upon the faithful performance and execution of the work covered by this 

contract according to the complete and detailed specifications and full and complete 

drawings, profiles and models therefore, and according to the terms and conditions of this 

contract, and conditioned also that the CONTRACTOR shall pay all debts incurred by said 

CONTRACTOR in the prosecution of such work, including those for labor and materials 

furnished.  The CONTRACTOR further agrees to pay liquidated damages as set forth in 

the specifications for failure to complete the Project by the date specified. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Parties have executed these presents on the 

date above mentioned. 

CONTRACTOR: CITY: 
 

`CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS 
 

By: By: 

Attest: 

 

 

City Engineer 
 
City Clerk 

Date:    
 

□  Performance Bond Attached □  Certificate of Insurance Attached 

http://www.state.il.us/agency/idol


RESOLUTION NO. 5256 
 
APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE LOWEST RESPONSIVE AND RESPONSIBLE BID 
FROM G&L TANK SANDBLASTING AND COATING LLC, FOR PROJECT #21-01, NORTH WATER 
TOWER COATING, IN THE AMOUNT OF $585,100.00.AND DECLARING THAT THIS RESOLUTION 
SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 
 
WHEREAS,  The City Council recognizes that the coating systems at the North Water Tower have reached the 

end of their useful lives and are failing in many areas; and, 

WHEREAS,  Bids were solicited on October 15, 2020 to replace the coating systems and make minor 
associated repairs and those bids received on time were opened and publicly read on November 
12, 2020; and, 

WHEREAS, G&L Tank Sandblasting and Coating LLC, 2101 Highway 64 W, Shelbyville TN  37160 
submitted the lowest responsive and responsible Base Bid of $585,100.00; and, 

WHEREAS, G&L Tank Sandblasting and Coating LLC’s bid includes a $585,100.00 Base Bid and a 
$35,000.00 Alternate Bid to install a mixer inside the water tower; and, 

WHEREAS, Staff has determined the mixer is unnecessary and recommends the Alternate Bid not be 
accepted; and, 

WHEREAS, $587,582 is available for this work in the Acquisition Fund; and, 

WHEREAS, Staff recommends the City of Kewanee enter into a contract with G&L Tank Sandblasting and 
Coating LLC for the $585,100.00 Base Bid. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE THAT: 

Section 1 The bid of G&L Tank Sandblasting and Coating LLC is hereby accepted. 
 
Section 2 The Mayor, City Clerk, City Manager, and City Engineer are hereby authorized to execute and 

attest to all necessary contract documents with G&L Tank Sandblasting and Coating LLC for 
Project #21-01, North Water Tower Coating, in the amount of $585,100.00; provided, however, 
that said contract documents are in substantially similar form and content to that attached hereto 
and incorporated herein. 

 
Section 3 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as 

provided by law.   
 

   Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 30th day of November 2020. 
ATTEST: 
 

  

   
   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
 
 RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Gary Moore     
Council Member Mike Komnick     

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Chris Colomer     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     













CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE November 30, 2020 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution #5257 

AGENDA TITLE Approval of an Amendment to an Agreement with 
Dixon Engineering to provide construction inspection 
services at the North Water Tower Coating project. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Public Works 

PRESENTER Scott Hinton, City Engineer 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

Not to exceed $59,100. 

Budget Line Item: 32-42-532

Balance Available Funds will be allocated in 
the FY2022 Water budget 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[  ] Yes [X] No

PURPOSE Approval of the Amendment to the Agreement is 
necessary to provide for construction inspection 
services at the North Water Tower Coating project. 



   

BACKGROUND Staff sought Statements of Qualifications from 
engineering firms that specialize in painting and 
coating storage tanks and towers.  There are no local 
firms that specialize in this service.  Staff found Dixon 
Engineering of Greenfield WI to be the most qualified 
to provide condition evaluation, technical 
specification writing, and construction inspection 
services for the North Water Tank Coating project.  
Staff entered into an Agreement with Dixon 
Engineering for $9,000 to evaluate the existing 
condition of the North Tower and to use this 
information to develop technical specifications to 
solicit bids.  Staff proposes to amend the Agreement 
to include construction inspection services.    

SPECIAL NOTES The value of this Amendment is an estimated, worse-
case scenario.  The actual cost will accrue at 
standard hourly rates, will depend on the amount of 
time it takes the contractor to complete all work, and 
is likely to be much less.  The value of the South 
Tower construction inspection contract was $47,350, 
however the actual cost was only $26,250. 

ANALYSIS Coating steel storage tanks and towers is specialized 
work that can be difficult to perform properly.  Staff 
believes it’s in the City’s best interest to engage a 
consulting firm with experience in such work to 
provide construction inspection services for the North 
Tower Project.  This will help ensure all work is 
performed properly and the coating systems don’t fail 
prematurely.      

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

N/A 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A    

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends amending the Agreement with 
Dixon Engineering to add construction inspection 
services for standard rates at the not-to-exceed price 
of $59,100.  



   

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

Statements of Qualifications were reviewed from 
several firms as part of the Qualifications-Based 
Selection (QBS) process used to select Dixon 
Engineering.       

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

 
The executed Agreement and proposed Amendment 
are attached. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 5257 
 
APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO AN AGREEMENT WITH DIXON ENGINEERING TO PROVIDE 
CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION SERVICES AT THE NORTH WATER TOWER COATING PROJECT 
AND DECLARING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 
 
WHEREAS,  The North Water Tower is scheduled to be re-coated in 2021; and, 

WHEREAS,  Storage tank re-coating is specialized work that is expensive to perform and can be difficult to 
perform properly; and, 

WHEREAS, There are consulting engineering firms that specialize in coating steel tanks; and, 

WHEREAS, Staff finds it prudent to engage such a consultant to ensure the North Water Tower work is 
performed properly; and, 

WHEREAS, Staff previously followed a Qualifications-Based Selection (QBS) process to select Dixon 
Engineering to evaluate the existing condition of the tank and to assist in developing the 
technical specifications to govern the project; and, 

WHEREAS, Staff entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Dixon Engineering for $9,000.00 to 
provide said services; and, 

WHEREAS, Dixon Engineering proposes to amend the Agreement to provide construction engineering 
services at standard rates for the not-to-exceed price of $59,100.00; and, 

WHEREAS, $59,100.00 will be included in the FY2022 budget for construction engineering; and, 

WHEREAS, Staff finds Dixon Engineering to be competent, is satisfied with the level of service provided 
thus far, and recommends approval of the Amendment to the Agreement. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE THAT: 

Section 1 The proposed Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with Dixon Engineering is 
hereby accepted. 

 

Section 2 The $59,100.00Amendment increases the value of the Professional Services Agreement with 
Dixon Engineering from $9,000.00 to a not-to-exceed value of $68,100.00. 

 

Section 2 The Mayor, City Clerk, City Manager, and City Engineer are hereby authorized to execute the 
Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement; provided, however, that said contract 
documents are in substantially similar form and content to that attached hereto and incorporated 
herein. 

 

Section 3 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as 
provided by law.   

 

 

 

 

 



   Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 30th day of November 2020. 
ATTEST: 
 

  

   
   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
 
 RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Gary Moore     
Council Member Mike Komnick     

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Chris Colomer     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     



  ITEM G 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE November 30, 2020 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution # 5258 

AGENDA TITLE Awarding demolition contract for the demolition of the 
buildings located at 245 Tenney St. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Community Development 

PRESENTER Keith Edwards, Director of Community Development 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

$1550.00 

Budget Line Item: 01-65-595 

Balance Available $10546.10 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE To award a contract to Kirk Dana to demolish the 
building on the lot located at 245 Tenney St.   

BACKGROUND Inspections of the property and building located at 
245 Tenney St. provided enough evidence to issue a 
Dangerous Building Notice on July 23, 2020.  As 
result of the Dangerous Building Notice, the Director 
of Community Development received an Order from 
the Court for demolition of the building located at 245 
Tenney St.  A Request For Proposal was drafted and 
published with a bid due date of November 18, 2020. 

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 

ANALYSIS Two bids were received and opened by the City Clerk 
on November 18, 2020. 
Kirk Dana Construction:  $1550.00 
Bowser Construction:  $4620.30 



  ITEM G 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

All legal processes required to obtain the demolition 
order were followed.   
Notice for the Request For Proposal was published in 
the Star Courier. 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends approval. 

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Scope of work for 245 Tenney St. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 5258 
 
A RESOLUTION TO AWARD DEMOLITION WORK AT 245 TENNEY STREET TO KIRK DANA 
CONSTRUCTION,  AND DECLARING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE 
IMMEDIATELY. 
 
WHEREAS,  The City of Kewanee, in Case No. 20-MR-130K in the 14th Judicial Circuit in Henry County, 

obtained a court order to demolish the buildings located at 245 Tenney Street; and, 

WHEREAS,  The Kewanee City Council finds it in the best interest of  the City to remove the dilapidated 
building located on the land at 245 Tenney Street; and, 

WHEREAS,  City of Kewanee staff advertised for, and solicited,  sealed lump sum bids for demolition of the 
building, and related work at 245 Tenney Street in Kewanee; and, 

WHEREAS, Two firms submitted a bid, and they were opened by the City Clerk at 10:00 a.m., on November 
18, 2020; and, 

WHEREAS, The bids received were: 

245 Tenney Street Demolition 
Firm Bid 

Kirk Dana Construction $1550.00 
Bowser Construction $4620.30 
  
  

 
WHEREAS, City staff has recommended that the demolition work at 245 Tenney Street be awarded to Kirk 

Dana Construction. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE THAT: 

Section 1 The bid of Kirk Dana Construction of Kewanee as shown above, is hereby accepted, and the City 
Manager is authorized to sign the necessary documents in order to have Kirk Dana Construction 
complete the demolition and related work at 245 Tenney Street, in full compliance with the 
project documents prepared by City of Kewanee staff, and all applicable rules and regulations. 

 
Section 2 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as 

provided by law.   
 

Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 30th day of November 2020. 
ATTEST:   
   
   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
 
 
 RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Gary Moore     
Councilmember Michael Komnick     

Councilmember Steve Faber     
Councilmember Chris Colomer     

Councilmember Michael Yaklich     



  ITEM H 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE November 30, 2020 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Ordinance # 4034 

AGENDA TITLE Consideration to rezone 117 E Central Blvd from R-5 
Multiple-Family Dwelling District to B-2 Business-
General Retail District. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Community Development 

PRESENTER Keith Edwards, Director of Community Development 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

N/A, including recurring 
charges 

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE To rezone 117 E Central Blvd from R-5 Multiple-
Family Dwelling District to B-2 Business-General 
Retail District. 



  ITEM H 

BACKGROUND Tyrone Johnson contacted me on October 14, 2020 to 
discuss his purchase of the Star Courier property at 105 E. 
Central Blvd.  Tyrone was advised, prior to purchasing the 
property, that the Star Courier was zoned B-2 Business 
District, General Retail.  It was not realized until after his 
real estate transaction that there were two parcels 
involved which included the small parcel (grass lot) East of 
the Star Courier parking lot.  This lot was also owned by 
the Star Courier; however, the lot is split up into two 
zoning districts.  The west edge of the parcel appears to 
be zoned B-2 while the east part of the parcel is zoned R-5 
Multiple Family Dwelling District.  Tyrone wishes to use 
this grass lot as an extension of the already existing 
parking lot for the equipment rental storage.  City staff 
discussed the options with Tyrone and it was decided that 
a request to rezone the property, so the entire property is 
zoned B-2, was the best option.   

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 

ANALYSIS When looking at the surrounding area, rezoning the 
parcel in question would not be out of character.  

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

Notice was published in the Star Courier and post 
cards were mailed to all property owners within 300 
feet. 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

After discussing the facts and testimony presented, 
the Plan Commission, by a vote of seven in favor, 
none opposed, two absent, that the request to rezone 
the property located at 117 E. Central Blvd. from R-5 
Multiple Family Dwelling District to B-2 Business, 
General Retail District be approved by the City 
Council. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends approval. 

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Plan Commission Minutes. 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 4034 
 

ORDINANCE GRANTING A REZONING REQUEST, FOR LAND LOCATED AT 117 E. CENTRAL 
BLVD., KEWANEE 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE, ILLINOIS, IN 
COUNCIL ASSEMBLED, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1 The City Council finds that a Petition has heretofore been filed by owner Tyrone Johnson 

with the City Clerk, directed to the Plan Commission and the City Council requesting that 
the zoning district of 117 E. Central Blvd. be changed from R-5 Multiple-Family 
Dwelling District to B-2 Business District, General Retail for the following described 
property: 
LOT 3 & 4 & N1/2 LOT 5 BLISHS ADD SUB OF BLK 1 CITY OF KEWANEE [EZ], Kewanee, 
Henry County, Illinois. 
This land is commonly known as: 117 E. Central Blvd. 

Section 2 The Plan Commission conducted a hearing upon the said Petition on Thursday, 
November 19, 2020, pursuant to notice being published in the Kewanee Star Courier 
according to law, at which time and place the Commission heard the statements of those 
speaking in support of the petition.  There were no objectors. 

Section 3 After further discussion at the hearing, the Plan Commission conducted a vote to approve 
the requested change in zoning of the land described in Section 1 hereof, with the results 
being seven in favor of the change in zoning, none opposed to the change in zoning, and 
two absent.     

Section 4 The zoning district of the land described in Section 1 hereof shall be, and hereby is, 
established as B-2 Business District, General Retail. 

Section 5 This ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval 
as provided by law. 

 

Passed by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 30th day of November, 2020. 
ATTEST:   
   
   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

  
 
 
 
  

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 
Mayor Gary Moore     

Councilman  Michael Komnick     
Councilman Chris Colomer     

Councilman Steve Faber     
Councilman Michael Yaklich     



  ITEM I 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE November 30, 2020 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Ordinance # 4035 

AGENDA TITLE Consideration of an ordinance allowing Indoor 
Shooting Range as a Special Use within B-3 Zoning. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Community Development 

PRESENTER Keith Edwards, Director of Community Development 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

N/A, including recurring 
charges 

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE To allow Indoor Shooting Range as a Special Use 
within B-3 Zoning. 

BACKGROUND The City has had a couple of inquiries, one a couple 
of years ago and one just recently, concerning the 
installation of a commercial indoor shooting range.  
Currently this is not a use listed within our zoning 
code.  Staff is requesting the Plan Commission to 
discuss the use of Shooting Range to be added 
under Special Uses within B-3 Zoning Districts.  By 
adding it as a Special Use, the Plan Commission and 
City Council will have control over the placement of 
such use as well as possible stipulations. 

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 

ANALYSIS  



  ITEM I 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

After discussing the facts and testimony presented, 
the Plan Commission, by a vote of six in favor, none 
opposed, three absent, that the special use of Indoor 
Shooting Range be added to list of allowed special 
uses under B-3 zoning. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends passing the ordinance. 

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Plan Commission Minutes 

 



ORDINANCE #4035 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 155.068(B) B-3 BUSINESS AND WHOLESALE DISTRICT, 
SPECIAL USES ESTABLISHED IN THE CITY OF KEWANEE CODE OF ORDINANCES, AND 

DECLARING THAT THIS IS ORDINANCE IS IN FULL FORCE AS PROVIDED BY LAW. 
 
WHEREAS,  The City of Kewanee has previously established permitted special uses in B-3 

BUSINESS AND WHOLESALE DISTRICT; and  

WHEREAS, The City Council has found that the need for adding Indoor Shooting Range as a 
permitted special use within B-3 BUSINESS AND WHOLESALE DISTRICT is 
needed.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
KEWANEE, ILLINOIS, IN COUNCIL ASSEMBLED, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
Section 1 The City Council hereby amends Chapter 155.068(B) of the City Code by 

inserting text shown as underlined and omitting text shown as strikethrough as 
follows: 

  
§ 155.068  B-3 BUSINESS AND WHOLESALE DISTRICT. 

   (B)   Special uses. The following uses may be allowed by special use permit per the provisions 
of §155.155 through §155.157. 

      (8) Indoor Shooting Range. 

 
Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 30th day of November 2020. 

ATTEST:   
   
   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
 RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Gary Moore     
Council Member Michael Komnick     

Council Member Chris Colomer     
Council Member Steve Faber     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     



  ITEM J  

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE November 30, 2020 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution #5259 

AGENDA TITLE Consideration of a Resolution authorizing the City 
Manager to execute documents for the renewal of the 
self funded insurance plan with Blue Cross Blue 
Shield of Illinois and other carriers. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Administration 

PRESENTER Rabecka Jones, City Clerk 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

$350,388.00 

Budget Line Item: 74-14-451 & 74-14-452 

Balance Available $730,132.10 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE Authorizes the City Manager to execute documents 
for the renewal of the self-funded insurance plan with 
Blue Cross Blue Shield of Illinois and other carriers 

BACKGROUND In 2014 the City switched to Blue Cross Blue Shield 
of Illinois (BCBS) for processing our health insurance 
claims.  The savings have been significant.   

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 



  ITEM J  

ANALYSIS Blue Cross Blue Shield continues to provide a 
substantial savings in the amount of paid claims due 
to the discount offered within the BCBS PPO 
Network.  Employees remain pleased with our 
coverage.  Collective bargaining agreements prevent 
the City from changing the coverages without 
agreement from the employee unions.  The City is in 
an RFP process to identify who our broker/consultant 
will be, which is a separate issue from what carriers 
we use in our self-funded plans.     

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

N/A 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A     

STAFF 
RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approval. 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

2021 Cottingham & Butler Renewal Presentation 

 



Presented By  |

City of Kewanee
2021 Renewal Meeting

Sara Dickinson, Vice President
Alexis Rettenberger, Client Consultant
Julie Harbaugh, Senior Client Consultant
Linda Perry, Assistant Vice President



2

AGENDA

• 2020 Financial Review through July

• 2021 Plan Renewal

• Appendix



2020 Financial Review through August



4

CLAIMS BY PLAN YEAR-ACTIVE

Medical Claims are trending to -10% less than last year.  
RX  Claims trending with an increase directly related to MS medications for 2 participants. 

Dental Claims are trending below last year (COVID related). 
Vision Claims are  trending similar to last year (COVID related).

BCBSIL & SISCO BSBSIL & SISCO BCBS IL & SISCO BCBS IL & SISCO

2017 2018 2019 2020

Current Year 

Annualized      

% Change

(CYA/PY1)

Medical Claims $821,661 $1,123,416 $855,894 $513,117 $769,675 -10.1%

Prescription Drug Claims $201,267 $286,836 $364,288 $256,426 $384,638 5.6%

Dental Claims $59,156 $59,376 $55,439 $29,285 $43,927 -20.8%

Vision Claims $6,547 $6,098 $5,450 $2,263 $3,395 -37.71%

Subtotal Claims $1,088,631 $1,475,726 $1,281,072 $801,090 $1,201,635 -6.20%

RX Rebates $11,160 $15,812 $24,192 $25,485 $38,228 58.02%

Stop Loss Reimbursements $175,766 $244,791 $162,939 ($23,006) ($34,509) -121.18%

Net Claims $901,705 $1,215,123 $1,093,940 $798,611 $1,236,144 13.00%

TPA Fees $67,148 $66,261 $57,223 $39,758 $59,636 4.22%

Consulting Fees $25,200 $25,200 $25,200 $14,224 $25,200 0.00%

PPO Fees $15,758 $22,635 $16,672 $8,246 $12,369 -25.81%

Stop Loss Premium $206,618 $219,655 $217,125 $177,836 $266,753 22.86%

Subtotal Administrative Fees $314,724 $333,751 $310,050 $240,063 $363,959 17.39%

 

Total Plan Costs $1,220,835 $1,548,874 $1,403,991 $1,038,674 $1,600,103 13.97%

Employee Contributions (Avg) $220,048 $147,790 $198,685 $135,064 $202,596 1.97%

Net Employer Cost $1,000,787 $1,401,084 $1,205,306 $903,610 $1,397,507 15.95%

Average Single Enrollment 20 19 21 21 21 -1.95%

Average Family Enrollment 55 52 51 52 52 1.13%

Total Average Enrollment 75 71 73 73 73 0.23%

Total Cost per Employee $16,278 $21,815 $19,277 $14,228 $21,919 13.71%

EE Contributions per Employee $2,934 $2,082 $2,728 $1,850 $2,775 1.74%

Net Employer Cost per Employee $13,344 $19,734 $16,549 $12,378 $19,144 15.68%



5

CLAIMS BY PLAN YEAR-RETIREE

BCBSIL & SISCO BCBSIL & SISCO BCBS IL & SISCO BCBS IL & SISCO

2017 2018 2019 2020

Current Year 

Annualized      

% Change

(CYA/PY1)

Medical Claims $129,862 $59,657 $142,652 $103,111 $154,666 8.42%

Prescription Drug Claims $24,345 $23,322 $19,118 $20,460 $30,690 60.53%

Dental Claims $9,713 $6,098 $2,018 $4,199 $6,298 212.12%

Vision Claims $758 $79 $520 $390 $585 12.50%

Subtotal Claims $164,678 $89,156 $164,307 $128,159 $192,239 17.00%

RX Rebates $2,808 $4,394 $5,287 $6,915 $10,372 96.19%

Stop Loss Reimbursements $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.00%

Net Claims $161,870 $84,762 $159,020 $121,244 $192,239 20.89%

TPA Fees $16,199 $16,871 $12,324 $10,609 $15,914 29.13%

Consulting Fees $0 $0 $0 $4,676 $0 0.00%

PPO Fees $2,273 $373 $2,805 $1,416 $2,124 -24.30%

Stop Loss Premium $51,988 $59,825 $47,630 $48,764 $73,146 53.57%

Subtotal Administrative Fees $70,460 $77,069 $62,759 $65,465 $91,183 45.29%

 

Total Plan Costs $239,553 $161,831 $221,779 $186,709 $283,422 27.79%

Employee Contributions $95,248 $47,493 $44,948 $43,283 $64,925 44.44%

Net Employer Cost $144,305 $114,338 $176,831 $143,426 $218,497 23.56%

Average Single Enrollment 11 6 7 8 8 10.34%

Average Family Enrollment 10 11 11 12 12 9.92%

Total Average Enrollment 21 17 18 20 20 11.11%

Total Cost per Employee $11,407 $9,519 $12,321 $9,335 $14,171 15.02%

EE Contributions per Employee $4,536 $2,794 $2,497 $2,164 $3,246 30.00%

Net Employer Cost per Employee $6,872 $6,726 $9,824 $7,171 $10,925 11.21%



6

CLAIMS BY PLAN YEAR-ACTIVE & RETIREE

Net claims are annualizing to decrease 3.6% from prior plan 
RX  Claims trending with an increase directly related to MS medications for 2 participants. 

Enrollment is up 2.2% with 93 on the plan.

BCBSIL & SISCO BCBSIL & SISCO BCBS IL & SISCO

2017 2018 2019 2020

Current Year 

Annualized      

% Change

(CYA/PY1)

Medical Claims $952,036 $1,183,074 $998,546 $616,227 $924,341 -7.43%

Prescription Drug Claims $225,386 $310,158 $383,406 $276,885 $415,328 8.33%

Dental Claims $68,980 $67,643 $58,186 $33,484 $50,225 -13.68%

Vision Claims $7,305 $6,177 $5,877 $2,653 $3,980 -32.28%

Subtotal Claims $1,253,707 $1,567,052 $1,446,015 $929,249 $1,393,874 -3.61%

RX Rebates $0 ($20,206) ($29,479) ($32,400) ($48,600) 64.86%

Stop Loss Reimbursements ($175,766) ($244,791) ($162,939) $23,006 $34,509 -121.18%

Net Claims $1,077,941 $1,302,055 $1,253,597 $919,855 $1,379,783 10.07%

TPA Fees $82,940 $83,131 $69,428 $50,364 $75,545 8.81%

Consulting Fees $25,200 $25,200 $25,200 $18,900 $25,200 0.00%

PPO Fees $18,965 $23,008 $19,478 $9,662 $14,493 -25.59%

Stop Loss Premium $258,425 $279,479 $264,754 $226,599 $339,899 28.38%

Subtotal Administrative Fees $385,530 $410,818 $378,860 $305,525 $455,137 20.13%

 

Total Plan Costs $1,463,471 $1,712,873 $1,632,457 $1,225,380 $1,834,920 12.40%

Employee Contributions $244,697 $218,694 $240,609 $176,726 $265,089 10.17%

Net Employer Cost $1,218,774 $1,494,179 $1,391,848 $1,048,654 $1,569,831 12.79%

Average Single Enrollment 28 31 29 28 28 -3.45%

Average Family Enrollment 70 67 62 65 65 4.84%

Total Average Enrollment 98 97 91 93 93 2.20%

Total Cost per Employee $14,933 $17,658 $17,939 $13,176 $19,730 9.99%

Employee Contributions per Employee $2,497 $2,255 $2,644 $1,900 $2,850 7.80%

Net Employer Cost per Employee $12,436 $15,404 $15,295 $11,276 $16,880 10.36%

BCBS IL & SISCO



7

LARGE CLAIMANTS 

Stop Loss Deductible is $65,000.
Amount over Stop Loss for Large Claimants through Aug 2020: $22,887

Stop Loss Deductible is $65,000.
Amount over Stop Loss for Large Claimants through Aug 2019: $74,821
Grey-colored are members who were large claimants both years.

Rel DOB Age Gender Section Status Diagnosis Medical Paid Pharmacy Paid Total Paid

EE 06/03/1961 59 M Retiree Active Heart Disease $53,408 $6,506 $59,914

EE 07/14/1967 53 F Active Active MS $11,615 $64,365 $75,980

EE 11/19/1974 46 M Active Active MS $1,147 $75,760 $76,907

EE 12/29/1970 50 M Active Active Spondylosis $56,706 $26 $56,732

$269,533

Rel DOB Age Gender Section Status Diagnosis Medical Paid Pharmacy Paid Total Paid

EE 07/09/1970 49 M Active Active Hypertensive Renal Disease $107,318 $14,982 $122,300

EE 07/14/1967 52 F Active Active MS $24,852 $57,669 $82,521

EE 11/13/1959 60 M Retiree Active Vertebrae Disorders $61,243 $732 $61,975

EE 11/19/1974 45 M Active Active MS $300 $69,948 $70,248

$337,044



8

MERCER PLAN BENCHMARKING

PLAN BENCHMARKING
In-Network Out-of-Network In-Network Out-of-Network In-Network Out-of-Network In-Network Out-of-Network In-Network Out-of-Network

Deductible C it y  o f  K e w a n e e  H e a lt h  P la n I n - N e t w or k C it y  o f  K e w a n e e  H e a lt h  P la n O ut - o f - N e t w or k M e r c e r  P P O  N a t ion a l A v e r a ge I n - N e t w or k M e r c e r  P P O  N a t ion a l A v e r a ge O ut - o f - N e t w or k M e r c e r  P P O  M idw e s t I n - N e t w or k M e r c e r  P P O  M idw e s t O ut - o f - N e t w or k M e r c e r  P P O  S ma ll E mploy e r s  ( 1 0  -  4 9 9  E E 's ) I n - N e t w or kM e r c e r  P P O  S ma ll E mploy e r s  ( 1 0  -  4 9 9  E E 's ) O ut - o f - N e t w or kM e r c e r  P P O  S t a t e / Loc a l G ov e r n me n t I n - N e t w or kM e r c e r  P P O  S t a t e / Loc a l G ov e r n me n t O ut - o f - N e t w or k

Single $500 $1,000 $2,000 $4,000 $800 $1,600 $2,000 $4,000 $600 $1,200

Family $1,500 $3,000 $4,000 $8,000 $2,000 $4,000 $4,000 $8,000 $1,500 $2,500

Coinsurance

Employer 80% 60% 80% 60% 80% 60% 80% 60% 80% 60%

Employee 20% 40% 20% 40% 20% 40% 20% 40% 20% 40%

Maximum Out-of-Pocket

Single $1,500 $3,000 $5,000 $8,000 $3,000 $6,000 $5,000 $8,000 $3,000 $5,250

Family $4,500 $9,000 $9,000 $15,600 $7,000 $12,000 $10,000 $15,600 $6,600 $10,500

Office Visits

Primary Care $30 40% after deductible $25 40% after deductible $25 40% after deductible $25 40% after deductible $25 40% after deductible

Specialist $50 40% after deductible $50 40% after deductible $40 40% after deductible $50 40% after deductible $40 40% after deductible

Emergency Care

Emergency Room

RX | Retail

Deductible (S/F)

Maximum Out-of-Pocket (S/F)

Generic

Brand

Non-Preferred Brand

Specialty

Actuarial Value (w/ Seeding)

Actuarial Value (No Seeding)

Monthly Employee Contributions

EE $107.51 $0.00 $232.00 $232.00 $149.00 $149.00 $235.00 $235.00 $129.00 $129.00

EE+FAM $219.83 $0.00 $670.00 $670.00 $521.00 $521.00 $674.00 $674.00 $513.00 $513.00

Medical & RX Gross Cost PEPY

89.0% 81.0% 86.7% 81.0% 87.5%

N/AN/A N/A

$13,139 $13,658 $12,489 $13,895

81.0% 86.7% 81.0% 87.5%

$17,175

$250

89.0%

$150 $250 $150

$60

$60

City of Kewanee Health Plan

N/A

$1,000 / $3,000

$10

$40

$150

Mercer PPO National Average

N/A

N/A

$10

$35

$100

$60

Mercer PPO State/Local Government

N/A N/A N/A

$10 $10 $10

$100 $100 $75

$55 $60 $50

$35 $35 $30

Mercer PPO Midwest Mercer PPO Small Employers (10 - 499 EE's)



9

C&B PLAN BENCHMARKING

PLAN BENCHMARKING
In-Network Out-of-Network In-Network Out-of-Network In-Network Out-of-Network

Deductible C it y  o f  K e w a n e e  H e a lt h  P la n I n - N e t w or k C it y  o f  K e w a n e e  H e a lt h  P la n O ut - o f - N e t w or k C & B  P P O  S ma ll E mploy e r s  ( 1 0  -  2 4 9  E E 's ) I n - N e t w or kC & B  P P O  S ma ll E mploy e r s  ( 1 0  -  2 4 9  E E 's ) O ut - o f - N e t w or k C & B  P P O  S t a t e / Loc a l G ov e r n me n t I n - N e t w or k C & B  P P O  S t a t e / Loc a l G ov e r n me n t O ut - o f - N e t w or k

Single $500 $1,000 $2,000 $4,000 $500 $1,000

Family $1,500 $3,000 $4,000 $8,000 $1,500 $3,000

Coinsurance

Employer 80% 60% 80% 60% 80% 60%

Employee 20% 40% 20% 40% 20% 40%

Maximum Out-of-Pocket

Single $1,500 $3,000 $4,500 $9,000 $1,875 $3,000

Family $4,500 $9,000 $9,000 $19,500 $4,500 $9,000

Office Visits

Primary Care $30 40% after deductible $25 40% after deductible $10 40% after deductible

Specialist $50 40% after deductible $40 40% after deductible $10 40% after deductible

Emergency Care

Emergency Room

RX | Retail

Deductible (S/F)

Maximum Out-of-Pocket (S/F)

Generic

Brand

Non-Preferred Brand

Specialty

Actuarial Value (w/ Seeding)

Actuarial Value (No Seeding)

Monthly Employee Contributions

EE $107.51 $0.00 $180.19 $180.19 $75.47 $75.47

EE+FAM $219.83 $0.00 $712.58 $712.58 $502.56 $502.56

Medical & RX Gross Cost PEPY

30%, Max $300 25%, max $175

$60$60

C&B PPO Small Employers (10 - 249 EE's) C&B PPO State/Local Government

$150

$60

$60

City of Kewanee Health Plan

N/A

$1,000 / $3,000

$10

$40

$150

82.1% 90.6%

$19,370

89.0%

$200

$40 $30

N/A N/A

N/AN/A

$10 $10

- -

89.0% 82.1% 90.6%

C&B PPO Small Employers includes 183 plans and 23,528 enrolled employees
C&B PPO State/Local Government includes 24 plans and 6,629 enrolled employees



2021 Plan Renewal



11

2020 RENEWAL OVERVIEW

Coverage Vendor
Next Renewal 
Date

2019 Rate 2020 Rate 2021 Rate

Stop Loss
BCBS of 
Illinois

01/01/2021

$234.05 pepm composite 
$13.31 pepm Agg Rate
$65,000 Spec-Med & Rx
24/12 contract

$279.07 pepm composite
$16.70 pepm Agg rate
$65,000 Spec-Med & Rx
24/12 contract

$316.96 pepm composite
$17.99 pepm Agg rate
$65,000 Spec-Med & Rx
24/12 contract

Self Funded Medical
ASO 

BSCS of 
Illinois

01/01/2021

$60.05
+$0.45 MD Live
- $27.68 RX Credit

$32.82 pepm

$62.45
+$.45 MD Live
- $43.49 RX Credit
$19.41 pepm

$64.00
+$.45 MD Live
- $70.26 RX Credit
-$5.81 pepm

Self Funded Dental TPA 
Admin

SISCO 01/01/2021 $3.25 pepm
(rate eff 4/1/14)

No Change No Change

Self Funded Vision TPA 
Admin

SISCO 01/01/2021 $1.50 pepm
(rate eff 4/1/14)

No Change No Change

Consulting Fee C&B 01/01/2021 $6,300/quarter
(rate eff 4/1/13)

No Change No Change

Group Life and AD&D Mutual of 
Omaha

01/01/2021 $0.18 / $1000 Life
$0.03 / $1000 AD&D
(rates eff 1/1/14)

No Change No Change

Vol Life and AD&D Mutual of 
Omaha

01/01/2021 Age banded
(rates eff 1/1/14)

No Change No Change



12

2021 STOP LOSS RENEWAL--$65K SL

Excess Loss Carrier

Specific Deductible

Aggregating Specific Deductible

Laser Exposure (in addition to spec. ded.) $0 TBD

Max Renewal % for No Laser Option 

Specific & Aggregate Contract Type

Specific & Aggregate Includes

Specific Contract Max

Aggregate Contract Max

Single Specific

Family Specific

 Aggregate Premium

Single Aggregate Factor

Family Aggregate Factor

Annual Specific Premium

Annual Aggregate Premium

Total Premium $326,497 $369,785

Attachment Point $1,623,388 $1,760,880
Minimum Attachment Point 100% $1,623,388 90% $1,584,792

Run in Claim limit 0% $0 0% $0

Expected Claims $1,408,704
(aggregating specific + 80% of att pt + laser exp.)

$349,924

$1,595.00

$1,470.46

$1,470.46

$19,861$18,437

Renewal

BCBS of IL

$65,000

$0

$1,595.00

24/12

$1,000,000

Per Employee Per Month

none

Medical & Rx Card

$316.96

Unlimited

Current

BCBS of IL

$65,000

$0

none

$1,000,000

$279.04

Per Employee Per Month

$279.04

Unlimited

$316.96

$17.99

24/12

Medical & Rx Card

$16.70

$308,060

Single 26

Family 66

TOTAL 92

Per Employee Per Month

Third Party Administrator BCBS of IL BCBS of IL

PPO BCBS of IL BCBS of IL

Medical Administration $62.45 $64.00

PBM Administration* -$43.49 -$70.26

MD Live $0.45 $0.45

Total $19.41 -$5.81

Annualized

Total Fixed Costs $347,926 $363,371
(total premium + total fees)

Maximum Total Exposure $1,971,313 $2,124,251
(total fixed costs + attachment point + 

laser(s) exposure + aggregating specific)

Expected Total Costs $1,772,075
(expected claims + fixed costs) 

Current Renewal



13

2020 BCBS OF IL RENEWAL--$65K SL

• Stop Loss Premium is changing from $279.04 to $316.96 ($37.92 pepm change or 13.5%)
• Admin Fee is changing from $62.45 to $64.00 ($1.55 pepm change or 2.5%)
• MD Live remains the same
• RX Rebate is changing from -$43.49 to -$70.26 ($26.77 pepm change or 61.6%)
• Net Change of $14,021 or $12.70 pepm



14

BCBS OF IL EQUIVALENCY RATES--$65K SL

• 2020 budget set by BCBS of IL UW at $1.6M (thru July 2020 annualizing to be $1.2 M)
• 2021 budget expected by BCBS of IL UW is $1.7M



15

2021 STOP LOSS RENEWAL--$70K SL

Single 26

Family 66

TOTAL 92

Excess Loss Carrier

Specific Deductible

Aggregating Specific Deductible

Laser Exposure (in addition to spec. ded.) $0 TBD

Max Renewal % for No Laser Option 

Specific & Aggregate Contract Type

Specific & Aggregate Includes

Specific Contract Max

Aggregate Contract Max

Single Specific

Family Specific

 Aggregate Premium

Single Aggregate Factor

Family Aggregate Factor

Annual Specific Premium

Annual Aggregate Premium

Total Premium $326,497 $350,388

Attachment Point $1,623,388 $1,782,629
Minimum Attachment Point 100% $1,623,388 90% $1,604,366

Run in Claim limit 0% $0 0% $0

Expected Claims $1,426,103
(aggregating specific + 80% of att pt + laser exp.)

$1,614.70

$1,614.70

$1,470.46

$1,470.46

$329,147

$18,437

none

Unlimited

$298.14

$0

$19.24

24/12

Medical & Rx Card

$1,000,000

Per Employee Per Month

$298.14

Alternate 1

BCBS of IL

$70,000

Current

BCBS of IL

$65,000

$0

none

$1,000,000

$279.04

Per Employee Per Month

$279.04

Unlimited

24/12

Medical & Rx Card

$16.70

$21,241

$308,060

Stop Loss Premium is changing 
from $279.04 to $298.14 ($19.10 
pepm change or 6.8%)



16

2020 BCBS OF IL RENEWAL—CHANGE SL 

Contract 

Type

Spec

Max 

Reim

Med or

MedRx

Specific & 

Aggregate

Premium

Specific & 

Aggregate

Premium

Current - BCBS of IL 24/12 Unlimited
Medical & Rx 

Card
$326,497 ----------

Renewal - BCBS of IL 24/12 Unlimited
Medical & Rx 

Card
$369,785 $350,388

92 agg rate

26 single agg

$43,288 $23,891

-$19,397

Specific Specific 
$65,000 $70,000

Carrier

Change from Current

Change from Renewal Premium

Historical Claims Claimants Over $65k Claimants over $70k
2014 1 0

2015 2 1

2016 6 5

2017 3 3

2018 4 4

2019 4 3

2020 2 2

City would need 5 claims to use up savings



17

2021 MEDICAL BUDGET

Rates include Medical ONLY Rates include Medical ONLY

Equivalency Rate Equivalency Rate

Single $738.55 Single $776.22

Family $1,846.38 Family $1,940.55

Average Only Average Only 

EE Contribution EE Contribution

Single $94.19 Single $94.19

Family $206.08 Family $206.08

 ER Net Cost  ER Net Cost

Single $644.36 Single $682.03

Family $1,640.30 Family $1,734.47

Estimated Annual Cost $1,688,329 Estimated Annual Cost $1,774,439

Estimated Annual EE Contributions ($241,024) Estimated Annual EE Contributions ($241,024)

Total Estimated Net Cost $1,447,305 Total Estimated Net Cost $1,533,415

Total Net Cost Per EE $18,555 Total Net Cost Per EE $19,659

Percent EE Contribution 14.28% Percent EE Contribution 13.58%

Total Medical Enrolled Total Medical Enrolled

Single 28 Single 28

Family 65 Family 65

Active Participant Enrollment Active Participant Enrollment 

Single 20 Single 21

Family 53 Family 53

Retiree Enrollment Retiree Enrollment 

Single 8 Single 8

Family 12 Family 12

2021 Cost Structure 

^blended contribution rate (estimated)

2020 Cost Structure 

^blended contribution rate (estimated)



18

2021 DENTAL BUDGET

Equivalency Rate Equivalency Rate

Single $26.11 Single $23.09

Family $78.34 Family $69.26

Dental EE Contrib. Dental EE Contrib.

Single $21.00 Single $21.00

Family $55.00 Family $55.00

Dental ER Net Cost Dental ER Net Cost

Single $5.11 Single $2.09

Family $23.34 Family $14.26

Estimated Annual Cost $68,938 Estimated Annual Cost $60,950

Estimated Annual EE Contributions ($49,296) Estimated Annual EE Contributions ($49,296)

Total Estimated Net Cost $19,642 Total Estimated Net Cost $11,654

Total Net Cost Per EE $202 Total Net Cost Per EE $120

Percent EE Contribution 71.51% Percent EE Contribution 80.88%

Enrollment Enrollment 

Single 28 Single 28

Family 64 Family 64

Active Employee Enrollment Active Employee Enrollment 

Single 21 Single 21

Family 55 Family 55

Retiree Enrollment Retiree Enrollment 

Single 7 Single 7

Family 9 Family 9

2021 Cost Structure - EE Contribution Modeler

* Budget is based on 98 current employee lives 

2020 Cost Structure - EE Contribution Modeler

* Budget is based on 98 current employee lives 



19

2021 VISION BUDGET

0 0

Single $3.38 Single $2.56

Family $10.13 Family $7.67

0 0

Single $5.00 Single $5.00

Family $8.00 Family $8.00

0 0

Single -$1.62 Single -$2.44

Family $2.13 Family -$0.33

Estimated Annual Cost $8,794 Estimated Annual Cost $6,659

Estimated Annual EE Contributions ($7,728) Estimated Annual EE Contributions ($7,728)

Total Estimated Net Cost $1,066 Total Estimated Net Cost ($1,069)

Total Net Cost Per EE $12 Total Net Cost Per EE -$12

Percent EE Contribution 87.88% Percent EE Contribution 116.06%

Enrollment Enrollment 

Single 28 Single 28

Family 63 Family 63

Active Employee Enrollment Active Employee Enrollment 

Single 21 Single 21

Family 54 Family 54

Retiree Enrollment Retiree Enrollment 

Single 5 Single 5

Family 8 Family 8

2021 Cost Structure - EE Contribution Modeler2020 Cost Structure - EE Contribution Modeler



20

MOVING FORMULARIES

Move from Basic to Balanced Drug List:

• 11 Participants affected and estimated savings of $11,788

Move from Basic to Performance Drug List:

• 13 Participants affected and estimated savings of $12,337

NameNameExt Utilizers ClaimsCount

AMPHETAMINE/DEXTROAMPHETAMINE 2 4

CIPRODEX 1 1

LANSOPRAZOLE 1 1

OLOPATADINE HYDROCHLORIDE 1 5

METHYLPHENIDATE HYDROCHLORIDE ER 1 1

HUMALOG 1 4

PULMICORT FLEXHALER 1 1

CLOTRIMAZOLE 1 1

IMVEXXY MAINTENANCE PACK 1 1

FREESTYLE LIBRE 14 DAY/SENSOR/FLASH MONITORING SYSTEM 3 10

NYSTATIN/TRIAMCINOLONE 1 1

VIRTUSSIN A/C 1 1

LINZESS 1 2

Grand Total 16 33



21

DENTAL RENEWAL

• Asking Blue Dental for Quote (not received yet)

• Blue Dental is passive network—meaning employees can go to any 
dentist like they do now with SISCO. Of course, if they go to in-
network dentist, members will see lowest cost. If they do go to out-of-
network dentist, the dentist may balance bill. 

• Offering BCBS Dental and Vision will offset the medical admin fee and 
stop loss premium: approximate savings of $1,900.



22

VISION RENEWAL PLAN 1

• BCBS of IL uses EyeMed
as network

• Progessive Lense
benefit too

• 4 Year Rate Guarantee

Employee Only: $8.25

EE+SP: $15.67

EE+CH: $16.49

Family: $24.25

EE and Family Premium 
annually would be $20k 
with this fully insured plan 
vs. $5,627 est. total cost in 
2020 ($7,459 in 2019)



23

VISION RENEWAL PLAN 2

• BCBS of IL uses EyeMed
as network

• Progessive Lense
benefit too

• 4 Year Rate Guarantee

Employee Only: $6.42

EE+SP: $12.20

EE+CH: $12.84

Family: $18.87

EE and Family Premium 
annually would be $15k 
with this fully insured plan 
vs. $5,627 est. total cost in 
2020 ($7,459 in 2019)



24

NON-MED RENEWAL

• Can look at non-medical offering and quote a more robust/rounded 
out program

• Mutual of Omaha is giving the City a flat renewal for 2021 for Basic 
Life and Voluntary Life. 



25

PLAN NOTES

• BCBS of IL Medical: enrollment manually completed by HR in BCBS of IL 
Portal

• BCBS IL Monthly Claims and Admin Fees

• SISCO Dental & Vision: enrollment manually completed by HR by emailing 
SISCO enrollment with enrollment form

• SISCO Weekly Claims now set up with email Mon/Tues then money is 
pulled automatically two days later. SISCO Monthly Admin Fees emailed 
and then pulled on the 1st of every month.

• City of Kewanee has 2 divisions with plans: Active and Retiree

• Retirees are allowed on plan if worked 8 years or reached age 55 or due 
to union agreement or administrative code until eligible for Medicare. 
Spouses and dependent children are allowed to remain on plan if retiree 
reaches Medicare age (as long as the dependents meet the dependent 
eligibility criteria). 

• COBRA and Retiree billing is handled by HR. 



26

BCBS OF IL FEATURES AND PROGRAMS

• BCBS of IL BAM Website and Mobile App: digital ID cards, claims tracking, cost 
estimators, find a provider or pharmacy, and other great online options

• 24/7 Nurseline: call a registered nurse anytime to discuss health questions or help to 
make care decisions or to help get an appointment with your doctor. Also, audio library 
of more than 1,000 health topics.

• MDLive: Virtual Doctor visits 24/7 for acute health issues.

• Special Beginnings Program: manage and understand your pregnancy with educational 
materials and support (from early pregnancy through six weeks after delivery).

• Blue365 Program: employees can save money on health and wellness products and 
services.

• Well on Target Program: provides tools and resources to help guide employees toward 
their health and wellness goals.

• Fitness Programs: access a nationwide network of facilities to take advantage of 
discounts.

• Health Advisors: these nurses or professionals may call members to help them get care 
for serious illnesses.



Appendix



28

COVID-19 RESOURCES FROM COTTINGHAM & BUTLER

Cottingham & Butler is committed to 
providing COVID-19/Coronavirus 
updates and regulations as they 
become available. 

In addition to the C&B COVID-19 
Resource Center, we are providing our 
clients with various other meaningful 
resources directly related to COVID-19:

• Webinars

• Email Blasts

• Educational Videos

• Employee Hotline via 
HealthCheck360°

https://www.cottinghambutler.com/covid19/


29

THINKHR PANDEMIC RESPONSE TRAINING COURSES

ThinkHR has extended the availability of the Pandemic Response Training Courses through the end of 
2020 at no cost. This course includes ten courses designed for HR, Managers, and Employees. 

Remember your team has access to ThinkHR resources at no cost! Having the right tools to navigate 
uncertainty and crisis can set your organization up for success. 



30

COVID-19 RESOURCES FROM OUR PARTNERS

Like Cottingham & Butler, our partners are also 
dedicated to providing valuable resources and 
tools to help navigate the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Our brokerage partners have created resources 
centers and webinars to help our clients and 
our team effectively understand COVID-19.

C&B Partner Webinars 

• ThinkHR

• Assurex

• Benefit Comply

• CIAB

• ZyWave

C&B Partner Resource Centers

• HealthCheck360°

• ThinkHR

• Benefit Comply

• MyWave Connect

https://www.healthcheck360.com/en/covid-19
https://apps.thinkhr.com/en-us#!/comply
https://benefitcomply.com/coronavirus/
https://cottinghambutler.secureclient.net/


31

ThinkHR™
An HR service provided as a valued added service to C&B clients.  This is an 800 number and website where your team can ask 
licensed HR professionals any Human Resource question. There are free employer webinars, over 400 employee training 
programs, and a Handbook Builder.

MyWave™
MyWave provides a wealth of employer and employee resources like Human Resource administration tools, 
communication materials, legislative guides, compliance briefs and much more.  Access to this highly utilized web site 
is available to Cottingham & Butler benefits clients free of charge. 

Employee Navigator™
Cottingham & Butler clients can take advantage of a free web portal that is custom built to fit the needs of each client.  
It is an employee friendly web site that includes the ability for employers to upload all employee benefit documents, 
forms, postings, web links, etc. and have a one-stop shop for all HR related resources a company needs to manage.

Medicare Assist Program™ (M.A.P)
Medicare Assist Program provides an online library of videos, flyers, pamphlets and guides to provide easy to understand 
material to help understand the basics of Medicare. Employers can provide the login and site information to all employees in 
order for them to utilize the resources on their own.

C&B EMPLOYER TOOLS

These are value added services provided at no cost to clients of C&B.



32

C&B BENEFIT COMPLY SELF CHECK

The regulations surrounding health and welfare benefits plans are fluid and confusing. We 
understand the enormous struggle our clients face when trying to keep on top of it all. That is 
why we have developed a process to ensure compliance with the rapidly changing regulatory 
landscape and give you peace of mind.

We will work with 
you to complete a 

comprehensive 
online survey of 

your current 
practices and 
procedures

Complete a 
Compliance 

Survey

We will then 
provide you with 

a gap analysis 
report which will 

identify areas 
where you are at 

risk of non-
compliance

Identify 
Compliance 

Gaps

Finally, we will 
work with you to 
prioritize issues 

and find solutions 
to close 

compliance gaps

Find 
Solutions

How It Works:



33

C&B COMMUNICATION RESOURCES

Custom Materials

Enrollment Guides

Summaries

Brochures

Postcards

Posters

Wallet Cards

Video Presentation

Off-the-Shelf Materials

Topic Materials – Powered by ZyWave

Video Library

Wellness Calendar

Enrollment Guide

Postcard

Wallet Card



34

C&B WEBINAR SERIES

Cottingham & Butler is pleased to offer a 
webinar series that provides opportunities 
to learn new information, refresh existing 
knowledge of benefit-related concepts, and 
keep up-to-date on emerging trends and 
compliance issues. 

We’re proud to be an HR Certification 
Institute approved provider as well as a 
SHRM Preferred Provider giving us the ability 
to offer HRCI and SHRM credits for many of 
our webinars. 

Some of the 2020 Webinar topics include:

Stop Loss

Compensation Trends

Rx Program Trends

Leave Management

https://www.cottinghambutler.com/media-library/employee-benefits-webinars-77/


35

C&B DEDICATED COMPLIANCE & HR CONSULTING TEAM

C&B offers a Compliance and HR Consulting team to 
assist clients in achieving their HR and Compliance 
projects with confidence. 

• Benefit issue research and analysis

• Document preparation 

• Form 5500 preparation and Delinquent Filer 
Voluntary Compliance 

• Non-discrimination testing

• Compliance audit

• HIPAA title II privacy and security consulting

• Compliance training

We assist clients in the following 
Compliance areas: 

• Compensation analysis, strategy, and benchmarking

• Employee handbook policy creation and review

• Job descriptions and analysis

• HR compliance audit

• HR live assist

We assist clients in the following HR 
areas: 



36

COMPENSATION BENCHMARKS AVAILABLE

• C&B can assist with up to 20 
positions per year. 

• Information needed: job 
description, location, SIC, and 
company gross revenue

• Deliverables: Summary report, 
individual position profile, excel 
spreadsheet with benchmark 
rankings



37

MONTHLY REPORT—COMBINED BCBS OF IL MEDICAL
FIXED COSTS Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

Administrative Fees                               5,850 5,913 5,913 5,913 5,787 6,038 5,661 5,787 0 0 0 0 46,861

PPO Access Fees                                   1,955 1,560 1,417 211 291 839 1,029 2,360 0 0 0 0 9,662

Consulting Fee 6,300 0 0 6,300 0 0 6,300 0 0 0 0 0 18,900

RX Credit Fee (REBATES) (4,045) (4,088) (4,088) (4,088) (4,001) (4,175) (3,914) (4,001) 0 0 0 0 (32,400)

Stop Loss Aggregate                               18,241 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18,241

Stop Loss Specif ic                                25,951 26,230 26,230 26,230 25,672 26,788 25,587 25,672 0 0 0 0 208,358

Total Fixed Costs 54,252 29,614 29,471 34,566 27,748 29,490 34,663 29,818 0 0 0 0 269,622

ELIGIBLE CHARGES

Discounted Rx Charges 37,362 38,240 41,052 35,921 44,522 25,438 50,540 33,338 0 0 0 0 306,413

Medical Charges 284,655 219,715 197,894 152,115 80,983 188,542 164,912 353,117 0 0 0 0 1,641,933

Medical Discounts 136,137 106,754 90,421 90,298 31,159 115,132 78,639 193,346 0 0 0 0 841,885

Medical Discount Percentage 48% 49% 46% 59% 38% 61% 48% 55% N/A N/A N/A N/A 51%

Total Eligible Charges after discount 185,879 151,201 148,526 97,738 94,346 98,849 136,813 193,109 0 0 0 0 1,106,460

EMPLOYEE LIABILITY

Med/Rx Deductible 18,852 18,439 16,988 4,876 6,626 11,314 11,137 10,553 0 0 0 0 98,785

Medical RX Co-Pays 4,343 3,824 3,971 3,660 3,935 2,837 4,159 2,799 0 0 0 0 29,527

Other Payment (938) (151) (37) (147) (115) (79) (78) (119) 0 0 0 0 (1,665)

Other Reductions 502 0 578 78 2,320 0 359 235 0 0 0 0 4,071

Med/Rx Coordination of Benefits 16,149 21,327 9,499 15,759 8,505 3,917 5,922 1,552 0 0 0 0 82,630

Total Employee Share 38,908 43,438 30,999 24,226 21,271 17,988 21,498 15,020 0 0 0 0 213,348

Employee Share % of discounted charges 20.93% 28.73% 20.87% 24.79% 22.55% 18.20% 15.71% 7.78% N/A N/A N/A N/A 19.28%

Total Paid by Plan 146,971 107,763 117,527 73,512 73,075 80,860 115,315 178,089 0 0 0 0 893,113

EXPECTED STOP LOSS REIMBURSEMENTS

Aggregate 0

Specif ic 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,467 17,539 0 0 0 0 23,006

Total Expected Stop Loss Reimb. 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,467 17,539 0 0 0 0 23,006

TOTAL PLAN EXPENSES AFTER STOP LOSS 201,223    137,377    146,999    108,078    100,823    110,350    144,511   190,368    -            -            -            -            1,139,728   

PLAN FUNDING

Employer Contributions 109,512 111,878 111,878 111,878 110,418 110,972 110,770 109,310 0 0 0 0 886,615

Employee Contributions-Estimated 17,187 17,519 17,519 17,519 17,299 17,406 17,304 17,084 0 0 0 0 138,836

Total Contributions 126,698 129,397 129,397 129,397 127,717 128,378 128,074 126,394 0 0 0 0 1,025,451

 

VARIANCE OF ACTUAL TO FUNDING (74,525) (7,980) (17,602) 21,319 26,894 18,028 (16,437) (63,974) 0 0 0 0 (114,277)

ENROLLMENT

Total Covered Employees 93 94 94 94 93 94 92 91 0 0 0 0 75

Total Covered Members 260 265 265 265 258 259 258 257 0 0 0 0 2,087



38

MONTHLY REPORT—COMBINED SISCO DENTAL

FIXED COSTS Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

Administrative Fees 296 325 302 302 302 283 299 296 0 0 0 0 2,405

PPO Access Fees                                   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Misc. Fees (ID cards, SPD, etc.) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Fixed Costs 296 325 302 302 302 283 299 296 0 0 0 0 2,405

ELIGIBLE CHARGES

Dental Charges 7,161 6,651 9,986 2,405 1,545 2,251 4,043 14,081 0 0 0 0 48,123

Dental Discounts 577 242 853 77 0 0 0 931 0 0 0 0 2,680

Dental Discount Percentage 8% 4% 9% 3% 0% 0% 0% 7% N/A N/A N/A N/A 6%

Total Eligible Charges after discount 6,584 6,409 9,133 2,328 1,545 2,251 4,043 13,151 0 0 0 0 45,444

EMPLOYEE LIABILITY

Dental Deductible 350 250 750 731 50 150 150 650 0 0 0 0 3,081

Dental Co-Pays 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Dental Co-insurance 1,860 1,255 1,470 0 373 67 785 2,852 0 0 0 0 8,661

Dental Coordination of Benefits 116 0 131 0 0 0 0 (28) 0 0 0 0 218

Total Employee Share 2,326 1,505 2,351 731 423 217 935 3,474 0 0 0 0 11,960

Employee Share % of discounted charges 35.32% 23.48% 25.75% 31.38% 27.35% 9.63% 23.13% 26.41% N/A 29.36% N/A N/A 26.32%

Total Paid by the Plan 4,259 4,905 6,781 1,597 1,123 2,034 3,108 9,677 0 0 0 0 33,484

TOTAL PLAN EXPENSES 4,554    5,230    7,084     1,900     1,425    2,317    3,407     9,973     -        -        -        -        35,889      

PLAN FUNDING

Employer Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Employee Contributions 4,019 4,108 4,108 4,108 4,108 4,108 4,108 4,087 0 0 0 0 32,754

Total Contributions 4,019 4,108 4,108 4,108 4,108 4,108 4,108 4,087 0 0 0 0 32,754

 

VARIANCE OF ACTUAL TO FUNDING (535) (1,122) (2,976) 2,208 2,683 1,791 701 (5,886) 0 0 0 0 (3,135)

ENROLLMENT

Total Covered Employees 91 92 92 92 92 92 92 91 90 91 91 91 92

Total Covered Members 250 255 255 255 255 256 246 244 247 248 248 248 251



39

MONTHLY REPORT—COMBINED SISCO VISION

FIXED COSTS Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

Administrative Fees 135 149 138 138 138 129 137 135 0 0 0 0 1,098

PPO Access Fees                                   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Misc. Fees (ID cards, SPD, etc.)                  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Fixed Costs 135 149 138 138 138 129 137 135 0 0 0 0 1,098

ELIGIBLE CHARGES

Vision Charges 71 750 990 163 150 150 0 379 0 0 0 0 2,653

Vision Discounts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Vision Discount Percentage 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% N/A 0% N/A 0% N/A N/A 0%

Total Eligible Charges after discount 71 750 990 163 150 150 0 379 0 0 0 0 2,653

EMPLOYEE LIABILITY

Vision Deductible 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Vision Co-Pays 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Vision Co-insurance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Vision Coordination of Benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Employee Share 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Employee Share % of discounted charges 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% N/A 0.00% N/A 0.00% N/A N/A 0.00%

Total Paid by the Plan 71 750 990 163 150 150 0 379 0 0 0 0 2,653

TOTAL PLAN EXPENSES 206      899        1,128   301      288      279      137      514        -        -        -        -        3,751        

PLAN FUNDING

Employer Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Employee Contributions 633 644 644 644 644 644 644 639 0 0 0 0 5,136

Total Contributions 633 644 644 644 644 644 644 639 0 0 0 0 5,136

 

VARIANCE OF ACTUAL TO FUNDING 427 (255) (484) 343 356 365 508 125 0 0 0 0 1,385

ENROLLMENT

Total Covered Employees 90 91 91 91 91 91 91 90 0 0 0 90 73

Total Covered Members 247 252 252 252 252 253 243 244 244 245 245 245 248



40

COST SHARING

Including Deductible/Copay/Coinsurance Removing Deductible/Copay/Coinsurance

Monthly Employee Contributions Monthly Employee Contributions

Contribution* Enrollment1 Contribution Enrollment1

Employee 28 Employee 28

Family 65 Family 65

Year to Date Employee Contributions Year to Date Employee Contributions

Medical/Rx Cost Sharing

Medical/RXDeductible 

Medical/Rx copay, other payments & reductions

YTD Employee Cost Share

Employee Plan Cost Analysis Employee Plan Cost Analysis 

Premium Contributions Premium Contributions

Deductible/Copays/Coinsurance

YTD Employee Cost Share YTD Employee Cost Share

% of Overall 

Program 

% of Overall 

Program 

Total Plan Fixed Costs 20% Total Plan Fixed Costs 23%

Total Claims Paid by Plan 65% Total Claims Paid by Plan 77%

Employee Deductible/Copay/Coinsurance 16%

YTD Claim Activity 100% YTD Claim Activity 100%

Less Employee Cost Share 10% Less Employee Cost Share 12%

Employer Liability 90% Employer Liability 88%

$138,836 $138,836

$1,237,246 $1,023,898

$893,113 $893,113

$213,348

$1,376,082 $1,162,734

$352,184 $138,836

Medical/Rx Cost Sharing Analysis Medical/Rx Cost Sharing Analysis 

$269,622 $269,622

$98,785

$114,563

$213,348

$138,836 $138,836

$213,348

Varies by 

Department

Varies by 

Department

$138,836 $138,836



41

DEMOGRAPHIC ANALYSIS

Overall Indexes 08/26/2020

Overall Demographic Index 1.004

Medical Only Demographic Index 0.997

RX Only Demographic Index 1.007

Geographic Index 0.939

Membership Composition

Total Employees 92

Total Spouses 61

Total Children 105

Dependent Ratio 2.80

Membership Mix

Male / Female Ratio - Employees 83% / 17%

Male / Female Ratio - Members 55% / 45%

Average Employee Age 46.7

Average Member Age 33.3

Potential Migration Opportunities

Employees Over 65 1

Spouses Over 65 0

Employees Under 26 3

Members 18 to 26 42

Employees with a Spouse 61

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

$12,000

$14,000

$16,000

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65

Member Demographic Summary

Male Female Poly. (Male) Poly. (Female)



Questions



RESOLUTION NO. 5259 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE DOCUMENTS FOR THE 
RENEWAL OF A SELF-FUNDED INSURANCE PLAN WITH BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF 
ILLINOIS FOR THE PLAN YEAR 2021, AND DECLARING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL 
BE IN FULL FORCE IMMEDIATELY. 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Kewanee provides health insurance benefits as a means of remaining 

competitive in the marketplace in its efforts to attract and retain a qualified workforce 
to provide services to our customers; and, 

WHEREAS, In order to contain costs and to assist City staff with the increasing volume of federal 
and state regulatory requirements in the health care field, the City of Kewanee engaged 
the services of Cottingham & Butler as health insurance consultants charged with 
reviewing coverage options and ensuring compliance with the various laws and 
regulations; and, 

WHEREAS, Blue Cross Blue Shield continues to provide a substantial savings in the amount of paid 
claims due to the discount offered within the Blue Cross Blue Shield PPO Network; 
and,  

 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds it to be in the best interests of the organization to accept the 

recommendation of staff and Cottingham & Butler to enter into renewal agreements 
with Blue Cross Blue Shield of Illinois and other carriers for the recommended health 
care plan. 

  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE KEWANEE CITY COUNCIL, IN COUNCIL 
ASSEMBLED, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1 The City Manager, or designee, is hereby authorized to execute any and all documents 

necessary to renew the City of Kewanee self-funded employee health care plan with 
Blue Cross Blue Shield of Illinois and other carriers. 

 
Section 2 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 

approval as provided by law.   

 

   Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 30th day of November, 2020. 
ATTEST: 
 
 

  

   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
 
 
 
 
 

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 
Mayor Gary Moore     

Council Member Michael Yaklich     
Council Member Mike Komnick     

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Colomer     



  Item K 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE November 30, 2020 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution # 5260 

AGENDA TITLE Resolution authorizing an agreement for Managed IT 
Services and Lease/Purchase agreements for IT 
Hardware Solutions to Access Systems. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Public Works Operations Manager 

PRESENTER Kevin Newton 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

$68,000.00 - $72,000.00 
annually 

Budget Line Item: Multiple 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE To provide Managed IT services and IT Hardware 
Solutions for the City of Kewanee 



  Item K 

BACKGROUND Information Technology (IT) is a layered expense between 
hardware, software, and services. The City addresses these 
expenses on an as needed basis and has routinely only 
budgeted historical average costs for these expenditures. If 
a workstation or server fails or needs repair, we pay to fix 
or replace it.  It is common for staff to use hardware that 
has become so slow it effects operations before it is 
replaced. The same can be said for software as 90% of our 
computers run Windows 7 or older operating systems. 
These operating systems are no longer supported or secure, 
and the latest operating systems will not function on dated 
hardware compounding the problem.  
 
Other concerns are our lack of adequate network security 
and data protection service and hardware.  In the event of 
some form of cyber-attack and or data breach, the cost to 
the City could be astronomical. 
 
Approaching IT related issues with a “fix as needed” 
approach to such an important and integral part of our 
operations has ended with the City’s IT infrastructure 
dated, unsecure and inefficient.  IT hardware and software 
is much like any other asset to the City. It depreciates over-
time, becomes unusable and needs replaced.     
 
Our practices towards IT are unstainable, leave the City 
vulnerable, and cause operational inefficiencies.  To 
address this issue the City can hire staff with the 
appropriate skillset, make one-time large expenditures for 
hardware or enter into an agreement with a company for 
managed IT services and lease options for hardware.     

 

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 



  Item K 

ANALYSIS The City solicited bids for Managed IT Services, 
Cyber Security Options, Back-up Solutions and 
related IT hardware lease options as this represents 
the best approach and value for the City moving 
forward.  The results are as follows: 

• Access System -$68,000 - $72,000 annually. All in 
one with no additional costs 

• Impact - $69,900 - $83,000 annually.  
• Heart Tech - $44,300 – 58,000 annually with 

additional potential costs.  
• Dell – 80,000 - $85,000 annually 
• IT Unified - $290,000 annually 
• Office Specialist – IT Costs are itemized  
• OMC - $45,000 -$50,000 annually with addition 

potential costs 

While hardware-leasing options are relatively black 
and white and costs being competitive within each 
vendor’s proposal the challenge lies in how each 
company approaches customer service, IT 
management, data protection and cyber security.  
The City has worked with a number of the vendors 
who have submitted proposals. Experiences ranging 
from less desirable due to customer service related 
questions and multiple callbacks causing additional 
costs, while others have been excellent. Levels of 
data protection and cyber security vary with each 
vendor and it’s the goal of the City to procure the 
highest level of each service at the lowest cost.   
Staff recommends entering into an agreement with 
Access Systems for our IT services and needs. The 
City has used their services periodically over the last 
12 months and their approach to IT and customer 
service has been excellent.  Their data protection and 
cyber security are leading edge within the Industry, 
and while their annual cost is not the lowest it does 
offer no hidden costs, which provide budget stability 
moving forward.      

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

Posted on the City’s website November 2, 2020 and 
emailed directly vendors 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A 



  Item K 

STAFF 
RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends adoption 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Bid documents received 

 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 5260 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF KEWANEE, AND DECLARING THAT 
THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT UPON ADOPTION. 

WHEREAS, The City has zero staff to manage or address Information Technology issues; 
and 

 

WHEREAS, the City is vulnerable to cyber-attacks, data breeches and is operationally 
inefficient due to dated hardware; and 

 

WHEREAS, The City solicited bids for Managed IT services, Cyber Security and Data 
Protection Options, and related IT hardware leasing options with the results 
found in the table below. 

Company Annual Cost 
Access Systems $68,000 - $72,000 
Impact  $69,000 - $83,000 
Heart Technology $44,000 - $58,000 
Dell Technology $80,000 - $85,000 
IT Unified  $290,000 
Office Specialist  IT costs are itemized 
OMC  $45,000 - $50,000 

 

WHEREAS, The City Manager and staff has recommended that the City enter into an 
agreement with Access Systems to provide Managed IT Services, Cyber 
Security, Data Protection and Hardware Options for the City of Kewanee. 

 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KEWANEE 
THAT: 
 
 
Section 1 The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement 

with Access Systems 4440 N. Brady Street, Suite 1 Davenport, IA 52806, to 
provide Managed IT Services, Cyber Security, Data Protection and related IT 
Hardware. 

 
 
Section 2 This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 

approval as provided by law. 
 



 
 

Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 30th day of November 2020. 
ATTEST:   
   
   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 
Mayor Gary Moore     

Council Member Michael Komnick     
Council Member Chris Colomer     

Council Member Steve Faber     
Council Member Michael Yaklich     


	Agenda 11-30-2020
	Monday November 30th, 2020

	CM Memo
	WARRANT LIST 11-30-2020
	Plan Commission minutes 11192020
	Com Dev EOM
	Cover Page October, 2020 signed
	October, 2020 executive summary
	001 DMR October, 2020
	Influent DMR October, 2020
	003 DMR October, 2020
	004 DMR October, 2020
	005 DMR October, 2020
	Moving Average Report October, 2020
	MOVING1

	Discussion Only Staff Report -outdoor boiler ordinance discussion
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	Discussion only Outdoor Boiler Ordinance - Draft
	Staff Report -acceptable bids
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	Res 5254 - Hinton - Resolution for Improvement - Staff Report
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	Res 5254 - Hinton - Resolution for Improvement - Attachment #2
	Doc1.pdf
	Res 5254 - Hinton - Resolution for Improvement - Attachment #2.pdf

	Res 5254 - Hinton -  Resolution for Improvement - Resolution
	Res 5255 - Hinton - Well #4 Surplus Pump - Resolution
	Res 5256- Hinton - North Water Tower Coating - Staff Report
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	Res 5256 - Hinton - North Water Tower Coating - Attachment
	Bid Tabulation - North Tower 11.12.20.pdf
	G&L Bid Submittal.pdf
	21-01 Contract.pdf

	Res 5256 - Hinton - North Water Tower Coating - Resolution
	Res 5257 - Hinton - North Tower Coating Inspection - Resolution
	Res 5258 Staff Report -Demolition 245 Tenney St
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	Res 5258 Demoliton 245 Tenney St
	Ord 4034 Staff Report -117 E Central Blvd
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	Ord 4034 Rezone 117 E Central Blvd
	Ord 4035 Staff Report - Indoor Shooting Range  Addition to B-3 Special Uses
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	Ord 4035 Special Use Addition to B-3
	Res 5259 Staff Report - BCBS Renewal of Health Insurance 2021
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	Renewal infor for 2021 Plan Year
	Res 5259 Insurance renewal
	Res 5260 Staff Report -ITServices
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	Res 5260 2020ITServicesResolution
	Res 5257 - Hinton - North Tower Coating Inspection - Staff Report.pdf
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE


